Notes to The Financial Statements

- State of Wisconsin
Transportation Revenue Commercial Paper Notes -

The ‘State authorized' transportation revenue commercial ‘paper
*“notes to pay the costs of major highway projects and certain State
R :Eraﬂsportataofs Haciiiies. ~As of “June 30, 2003, ‘the -State issued
$157 & mtihon of traﬂspefizataon reventie commemsal paper notes
. Pemdlcaﬁy, additional commercral paper notes are issued to'pay
5_'f0r maturing commercial paper notes, “The State interds 1o Take
s annuaal Jaly 1 payments on the commercial paper notes that reflect
'prirscipai asmortization of the notes. The State also’intends to
make regutar paymenis o the ;sswr;g and paying agent, that will
:-'.'.ﬁi:se squal'te the upcommg interest due'on maturmg nates At dune
:*:' : 39 2008, the arountol commercial paper nates oltstaniding was
= .-$131 4 miflion which had interest rates ranging from™1.0 percent {0

110 percent and maturities fangmg from JuEy 7, 2603 o January
'22 2004. ' : 2

_ "-Shert o dobt activity for the year ended June 30, 2003 for the
: -_-'-.traras;;oﬁahon revenue commercial paper notes was as fc ows {in
B miilzons} ' - :

. '_'_B_aian'ée ' Balznce
duty 1, 2002 Additions Reductions June 30, 2603

$ 1387 $ - 3 53 § 1314

' '-S:E;"Certi.fi'cat'as'of :Par'ti'cipaiion

The State’ establtshed a faczlity in 1992 ‘that p;’ovudes lease
__urchase fi nancmg for property and certam servrce tams. acqwred
by State .ager_xmes “This famltty is -the - Tharé Amende& and
‘Restated Master Lease 1992-1. Pursuant to the terms and
.conditions of this agreement, the trustee for the facility issues
~parity ‘Master Lease ceftificates of participation ‘that evidence
‘proportionate interest of the owners theréof in lease payments. A
~“common poot of collateral ratably secures all Master Lease
cérﬁfcates Tme n the property and service ftems purchased
= yinder the facsltty remains with the State and the State grantsto the
" Trustee, for the benefit of all Master Lease cerificate holders, a
first security interest in the leased items. At June 30, 2003, the
“following parity Master Lease certificates were outstanding:

“s  Master Lease Certificates of Participation of 1996, Series B,

' “in the amount of $.05 million.  This seties of Master Lease
certificates had an interest rate of 4.9 ;}ercenz ‘and matures
tbrough September 1, 2003,

+  Master Lease Cerlificates of Participation of 1989, Series A,
" in the amount of $24 million. This series of Master Lease
certificates have interest rates ranging from 3.7 percent to 3.9
percent and mature semi-annually through March 1, 2008.

a7

Master Lease Certificates-of Participation of 1999, Series B
(Taxable), in the amount of $5.7 million. This series of
Master Lease certificates have interest rates ranging from 5.5
percent 1o 5.6 percent and mature semiannually through
Sepi‘embﬁr‘i 2005, :

Master Lease Cemﬁcates of Particzpanmn of 2000, Senes A,

in-the amount. of $10.3 million, - This series of Master Lease

certificates have interest rafes ranging from 4,5 percent to
4.75 percent and mature semt-amuaily through September
1, 2%)%37 : -

Master.Lease Cerlificates of Participation of 2000, Serles B

{Taxable}, in the amount of $6.1 million. This seres of
Master Leage cerificates have interest rates ranging from
6.85 percent to 7.0 percent and matire semzannuaily

. mrcugh Septembeﬂ 2{305

Masier Lease Certaf cates o§ Paﬁzctpatson of 2002 Series A,
in the amount of $35.3 million. . This series of Master: Lease :
certificates have interest rates ranging from 2.50 percent to
3.75 peraent and -mature semi-annually through Sepzember
1, 20(}7 : :

Master Lease Certificates of Participation of 2002, Series B
{Revolving Credit. Agreement ~ Taxable).in the amount of
$60.0 million. This Master.Lease certificate evidences the
Sta’t_é’s obligation to repay revolving loans under a Revolving
Credit Agreement, dated July 1, 2002 between U.5. 'Bank
National Association (Truszee) and the Bank of Amama_

: E.easmg and Capitai LLC. This. Mastar Lease ceftzﬁcate si'aal!_
' bear interest at the rates providedfor in'the Revolving: Crsdzt' :

Agreement and matures on.September 1, 2017, The balaﬂce
of this certificale of participation may include some- aoe:uexj
interest that will be payable at the next semi—annuaf mterest

‘payment date.

Master Lease Cerlificates of Rarticipation of 2002, Series C
{Revolving Credit Agreement - Tax Exempt) in the ameuh_i‘ of
$19.8 million. This Master Lease certificate evidences the
State’s obligation to repay tax-exempt revolving loans under
a Revolving Credit Agreement, dated: July 1, 2002 between
U.S. Bank Nationa! Association (Trustee) and the. Bank of
America -Leasing & -Capital LLC. . This Master Lease
certificate shall bear interest at the rates provided for in‘the
Revolving Credit Agreement and matures on March 1, 2013,
The balance of this certificate of participation may include
some accrued interest that will be pavable at the next semi-
annual interest payment date,

Master Lease Cerlificates of Participation of 2002, Series D,
it the amount of $27.1 million. This series of Master Lease
Certificates have interest rates ranging form 2.0 percent to
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50 percent and mature semi- anﬂualiy ihmvgh Septemher 1,
i 2{30? : : :

R Master Laase Certificates ‘of Participation of 2003, Series A
(Revolving Credit Agreemeni - Taxabla) This. Master Lease
certificate evidences the State’s cbttgattorz to repay revolving

“loans under 3 Ramiwng Credit Agreement dated July 1,
2002 between 1.8; Bank National Association (Trustee) and
the Bank of America Leasing & Capital LLC, as amended to
extend the: Commitment date té Jurse 30,2004, This Master

; Lease cemf cate shalf bear interest at the rates’ pmv;ded for

in the Reveivmg Credtt Agreement and matures on March 1,

~2049. " The' balance of this certificate .of. panmpatzorz may
: anciude someaccrued interest that will be payable at the next
Lo semz~annua¥ mierest payment éate s

The Third Amerzded and Resiated Master Lease €992«1 pmv;des
that ceriam lease schedus es fo the facn lty can be termmatec% if the

- State depassts with the Trustee an amauni that is ec;ual 1ol the '

"-Qutszandmg amount of the lease schedule; orin amounts that are
sufficient to- purchase mvestments that maturﬁ on éat&s ‘and in
- amounis o make the leage: payments when due.’ At June 30,
2003, the State has deposited with the Trustee" amounts. ‘that
when " invested, ~will term:naze lease scheéules having - -an
: aggregate esutstaﬂdmg -amount of $41: mtl jon. - As @ result of
terminating these lease schedules, the - assoc;ated iuabihty is
"removed Hfrom the fi nancxai siatemeﬂts »

. Arbntrage Rebaie

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 reqwres that’ gavemmentai erztxtses
: ifssumg tax~exempt de&}t subs&quer;t o'August 1986, o8 rmia’ie and
rebate” arbitrage eamings to'the federal govemmenz Specuﬁcaily,
he excess ‘of the aggregated amount eamed of investmenis
purchased ‘with ‘bond -.prqcéeds_nver the amount that would have
been eamed if ihefproceéds were invested at a rate equal to the

bond vield, is to be rebated fo the federal government, As of June:

30, 2003 no arbxirage rehate l;absmy e)nsted
G Morai Obhgation Debt

Through legislation enacted in 1894, the State authorized the
creation’ of ‘local -exposition- districts. - These districts (Wisconsin
Center District, Southéast Wisconsin Professional Basebalt Park
District, and the Green Bay/Brown County Professional Football
Stadium District) are authorized to issue bonds for costs Telated 1o
an exposition” center, and if the State defermines that certain
conditions are satisfied, the State may have a morai obligation to

o8

appropriate moneys -to .make up deficiencies in. t_h_é_; districts’
reserve funds that securs up to $200 millon principal amount of
bonds.. To-date, the Wisconsin Center District has issued 51258

- million. of bonds that are subject to the moral oblaga’bon The two

other lovai exposition districts each have authority fo issue $160.0
million of revenue obligations that, subject to the. Secretary of
Admznfstraﬂeﬁs determination that certain corzci:ttons have been
met, could carry @ moral oblsgat;on of the State. -Each of these

_districts -have issued revenue obligations that do not camry the

moral oblsgatmn of the State

--Thrnugh teglsiaﬂon enacied in 1999 the Szat@ authanzed the
- issuance of up-to $470.0 milion principal amaunt of i‘:ﬁnds He

ﬁﬂance_iile.dev_&_lopment or redevelopment of sites and fa_cﬂtties (s
be used for public schools. If certain conditions are patisfied, and
if a special debt service reserve fund is created for the bonds, the
Staie will. provide a moral obligation pledge, which would restore

~the special debt reserve ‘fund esiabitshed for. the. bonds fo an
: amnunt not to. exceed the maximum annual debi se;’vzc:e on the

bonds. One bond issue of $33.3 tillion has been tssueé that has
a special debt service reserve fund secured by the States moral
abhgataon

H; Credit Agreements
Primary Government

The State has, as part of the working bank contract, a ‘tetter of
credit -agreement. with the US Bank Nationat i Association under

“which the Bank has agreed 10 provids to the State an open. line of
- ‘credit in the amount of 350.0 million. T?re agreemefat pmv;des for
' asivancas in ant;cspateon of bemi |ssuance praceeés As of June

30, 2003, $50.0 million was unused and available. -

The State has previcusly entered into a. gredit agreement to
provide a line.of credit for liquidity support for.up to $85.0 m_'ElEion of
general obligation commercial paper notes. The line of credit
expires in March, 2004, but is subject 1o annual renewal as
provided for in the credit agreement. The cost of this line of credit
is .12 percent per year. o

Also, the State has entered into a credit agreement with two banks
to provide a line of credit for liquidity support for ifs fransportation
revenue.commercial paper program. The amount of the line of
credit is $140.0 million. This ling of credit expires in May, 2004,
but is subject to renewal as provided for in the credit agreement.
The cost of this line of credit is 0,170 percent per vear,
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- "Szate of Wisconsin

“NOTE12. LEASE COMMITMENTS AND * -
-  INSTALLMENT PURGHASES

' _Tbe State leases oﬁ" ice bmfdmgs space, and equipment under a
_ 'vartety of agmemenis thai vary in &ease ferm, many of which are
-_sub;em i appropnatmn frem the State Legisiaiua'e to confinue the
'}ease commitment. If such funding, ie. %hrough legisiative
appmpnataan, Is judged to be assured, and the likelihood of
cancellation through exercise of the fiscal funding clause is
'_remcte leases are considerad ngncancelable and repcrted as
: e her a capltal Eease oran opemimg !ease

fA Capltai Leases
' Pfimary Government

__'Cé’pital lease commitments in the . gcvemment—wxde arzd
: mepr;etary funds statemea'lm are re;mrteci as liabilites at jease
_'_mceptmn The related assets along wuth the éepmcsaﬁton are also
"_repcr}:ed at that time. Lease paymems are reported as a
: '_jreductren of the ltabsisty '

.For capital leases In governmental fﬂnds, “Other Fmancmg
'Sefurces - Capital Lease Acquisitions" and expenditures are
. r_re_corded _at lsase inceplion.  Lease payments are recorded as
"'a_)_(péhditures.‘ : S

~The following is an analysis of the gross minimum - lease

" payments along with the present value of the minimum lease
. payments as'of June 30, 2003 for capital leases (in thousands):
S | Governmentat 'Businéﬁ@be
Fiscal Year Activities Activities

2004 $ 14,257 $ 6,360
. 2005 10,498 5,385
2008 7,774 4,560
2007 4,791 3,949
- 2008 5117 24,393
2000 - 2013 2,511 2,323
2014 - 2018 303 991
Total minimum
future payments 45,251 47,963
Less: Executory costs (29 -
Less: Interest {4,507} {7,047)
Present value of
net minimem

. iease payments $ 40,315 $ 40,916

Assets acquired through capital leases are valued at the lower of
fair market value or the present value of minimum lease payments
at the nceplion of the lease. The following is an analysis of
capital assefs recorded under captiai leases as of June 30, 2003
{inv thousantis) ' S

Goveramental  Business-type

Activities Activities - -

Land and Land

Improvements § 818 % -
Buildings and - : o
“Ymprovements 1,060 48,654
Macﬁinery and )
"Equipment 63,418 10,743
Lass: Accumulated :

Depreciation {15,864) (8.485)
Carrying Amount $ 48,991 3 50912

Master Laase ?rogram

- The State established a facmty in 1982 that provides jease
-purchase financing for property and certain service items acdtsired

by state ‘agencies. . This facility is the Third Amended -and
Restated: Ma'star Lease between the State acting by and through
the - D&;}&ﬂmem of - Administration -and 1J.8. Bank National
Assomai;nn Aease: purchase ohligations under the Master Lease
are not general-obligations .of the State, but are payable from
appropriations of State agencies participating in the Master Lease
Program, - subject - to - annual " appropriation. * - The " interest
comporrent of each aaseipasmhase paymem is subject to'a -
separate determmazscm Pursuant o terms of the Master Lease
the Trustee for the facil :ty issues paraty Mastes Lease Ceritﬁcaies
of Parﬂcnpauon that evidence proportlonata interast of the cwners
thereo? in Eease payments The cutstanding balance as of June
30, 2003 was as follows:

Average Life
Balance Due (Weighted Term)
$127.148,130 3.46196 Years
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-Comﬁonent-llnit

Under -the terms - of a lease agreement,. the University of
Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority (the Hospital} leases
faciiities which were'ncmpied by the Hospital as of June, 1996
{see Nate 1B to the fi nancial statements). - The initial term of the
lease [is. 30 . years 1o -be. renewed annually with automatic
extensions of one additional .year on each July 1 unti action is
Laken to stup the extensmns Included in the consideration for the
lease is an amount equal fo the debt service during.the term of
the lease agreement on all outstarsémg bonds xssued by the State
for the .purpose of financing the acquisition, .construgtion or
improvement of the leased fac;hi‘ses interest rates on the. related
ponds range from 4.0 percent to 6.26 percent, with.final maturities
due “beginning in April 2000 through April 2022, Scheduled
prmctpal and interest payments through A;)rz! 2022 are . $22.9
mlﬁlon

B.. Operatmg Leases

O;}eratmg Ieases, those leases not reco:ded as caplzal leases as
required by FASB Statemeni No. 13, are not recordad in the
statement-of net assets These leases comtain various renewal
“options, the effac& “of whlch are reflected in the minimum lease
‘payments erzl_y if it is considered that the option will be exercised.
Certain ‘other operating leases contain -escalation clauses and
cantmgeni rentats which are not mcluded inithe calculation of the
future minimum lease paymems ‘The- State has adopted the
operating Jease scheduled rent increase provisions of FASB
Statemerzt hNo. 13 O;aeratmg ease expendstures!expenses are
g recognszeé a% ;ncurred or ;}md over the iease tet“m

Gevemmentai and busmess-iype acﬁvmes reﬂtal expenses under
operatmg leases for Fnsca Year 2003 were $52 8 m:iilcm Of this
amount, 5623 mslilon relates to minimum rsntal paymems
stipulated in Iease .agreements, 551{) ih{)usami ‘relates o
cantmgent rertals, and $425 thousand relates to subrental
payments.
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The foliowing .is an analysis -of the future minimum - rental
payments due under operating leases {in thousandsy.

. . Business- o

_ Governmental type . Component
Fiscal Year Activities Activities __ Units

2004 § - 43,691 $ 10499 $ - 54206
2005 34,606 8,382 .- 5,320
2006 126,208 6,413 5,013
2007 20,961 4,521 4,448
2008 18,454 2,949 13270
Thereafter 44,450 12,685 4,189

Minimum lease S
payments $ 188,369 $ 45349 % 27685

C. Enstaliment P‘urchases

The Siate has entered into mstailmem parchase agreements
The foliowmg is an anaEySis of the gross mmmum anstailment
payments glong with ‘the present value of the minimum
instaliment payments, as of June 30, 2003 for installment
purchases {in thousands):

G'd\}ernme.r';:tai
Fiscal Year Activities
2004 o § 4.282
2005 1,223
2006 810
2007 563
Total minimum future payments 3,878
Less: interest -{224)
Present value of net minimum o
instaliment payments 5 3653
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-'NOTE 13 RET[REMENT PLAN

. The Wfaoonsm Retirement System (WRS) was established and is
-administered by the State of Wisconsin to provide pension

- banefits for Stale and local government public emplovees. The
WRS consists of the fixed retirement investment trust, the variable
- Fetirement investment trust, and the police and firefighters trust.
Although separated for accounting purposes, the assets of these
trust funds can be used fo pay benefits for any member of the
WRS, and are reported as one pension plan.

“The WRS is considered part of the State of Wisconsin's financial
; reperting ent;ty Copies of the separately issued financial report
‘that includes financial statements and reguired supplementary
‘information for the year ending December 31, 2001, may be
" pbtained by writing fo

Departrent of Empioyee Trust Funds
801 West Badger Road
P.O. Box 7931

" Madisor, W} 53707-7931.

" The separately issued financial reports for the year ended
- 'Depember 31, 2002 wilt be available in Calendar Year 2004,

" 'Plan Description

s The WRS, governed by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes, is
a cmst—shanng multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. It
. :pmwdes coverage to all eligible ‘State of Wisconsin, local
: govemmen% and other pubixc employess. Any empioyee of a
"' participating employer who is expeéteé_w work at least 800 hours
per year for at least one year must be covered by the WRS, As of
December 31, 2002, the number of participating emplovers was:

State Agencies 61

‘Cities 153
Lounties 71
4" Class Cities 34
Villages 219
Towns 182
Schaol Districts 426
Wisconsin Technical College System Board Districts 16
Cooperative Educational Service Agencies 12
Cther 178

Total Employers 1,359

For emplovees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1980
and no fonger actively employed on or after Aprl 24, 1998,
craditable service in each of five years is required for eligibility for
a retirement annuity. Participants employed prior to 1880 and on
or after April 24, 1998 are immediately vested. Employees who
refire at or after age 65 (55 for proteciive occupation employees,
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82 for elected officials and State executive participanis) are
entitled to receive an unreduced retirement benefit. The factors
influericing the benefit are: (1) final average eamings, (2) years of
creditable service, and (3) a formula factor.

Final average earnings is the average of the participant's three
nighest years' samings. Creditable service is the creditable
current and prior service expressed in years or decimal
equivalenis of partial years for which a participant reééives
earnings and makes contributions as reguired. The formula factor
is a standard percentage based on employment category.

Employees may retire at age 55 (50 for protective occupétion
employeas} and receive reduced benefits. Employees terminating
coverad employment before becoming eligible for a retirement
benefit may withdraw their coniributions and forfeit all rights to any
subsequent benefits. The WRS aiso provides death and disability
benefits for empioyees.

Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

The financial statements of the WRS have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, using
the flow of economic resources measurement focus and a full
aceryal basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses
are recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred. Plan member
contributions are recognized in the period in which contributions
are due. Employer contributions {o the plan are recognized when
due and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide
contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Al assets of the WRS are invested by the State of Wisconsin
Invesiment Board. The retirement fund assets consist of shares
in the variable retirerent investment trust and the fixed retirement
investment trust. The variable retirement investment frust
consists primarily of equity securities. The fixed retirement
invesiment trust is a balanced investment fund made up of fixed
incotme secunties and equity securities. Shares in the fixed
retirement investment trust are purchased as funds are made
available from retirement confributions and investment income,
and sold when funds for benefit payments and other expenses are
needad.

The assets of the fixed and variable retirement investment frusis
are cartied at fair vaiue with ali market value adjustmenis
recognized in current operations. Investments are revelued
morthly to current market value. The resulting valuation gaiﬂs or

losses are recognized as income, altholugh revenus has not besn
reatized through a market-place fransaction.
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‘The WRS does not have .any investments (other than those
_issued .or guaranteed by the U.S. Govermnment} in any .one
organization that represent. 5.0 percent or more of pEan net
assets, :

State Contributions Requimd and COntrihutioas Made

'Covered State emptoyees in the Generali‘f eacher category are
requxred by statute 1o Ceﬁtﬂbﬂte 5.0% of their salary (3.1% for
Executives’ and B ected Offi cials, 4.0% for Protective Occupations
with Secuai Sacunty, 3nd 3 0% for Prctecﬁwe Occupatmns without
Social “Seturity) to ‘the plan Emplayers may make these
ccntrzbuizt)ns tﬁ the p}an on behah‘ af emp oyees

Empioyers are reqmred 1o confribute an acluarially determined
amount necessary to fund the remaining projected cost of future
benefits; however, ‘State legislation in 1999 prescribed a- 5200
million contribution haliday for employers for the first time in- the
plan's history. State contributions made for the years ‘ended
December 31, 29(}2 2001 and 29{3{3 ‘were a8 foilows (zrz rmliucms)

2002 -

2001 29{}8
Employer current service $127.2°° $1229  $1247
" ‘Percent of payrol! 43% 0 42% 4.8%
- Employer prior service $383 51585 304
‘Percent of payrolt 1.3% 0.5% < 00%
Employee required =~ - 448,75 1409 15134
Percentof payroll . 4.9% © 4.9% 4.9%
Benefit adjustmentcontrib. - $53 - §81 $12.1
" Percentofpayroll . . - 02%° . 02% . 0.4%
Percent of Reguired
100% 160%

Contributions 180%

The WRS uses the “Eniry Age Notmal with Frozen Initial Liability”
actuarial method in establishing employer contribution. rates.
Under this method, the unfunded actuarial acorued . liability
(UAAL} is .generally affected only by the monthly amortization
payments, compound interest, the added llability created by new
employer units, and any liabiliies caused by changes in benefit
provisions., The UAAL is being amortized over a 40 year perod
beginning January 1, 1880, However, periodically, the Employse
Trizst Funds Board has reviewed and, when appropriate, adjusted
the actuarial assumptions used to determing this liability.
Changes in the assumptions. may affect the UAAL, and the
resulting actuarial gains or losses are credited or charged to
employers’ unfunded Hability accounts.

All actuarial gains or ?stes_-aﬁééng from the difference between
actual and assumed experience are reflected in the determination
of the normal cost.

As of June 30, 2003 and 2002, the WRS's unfunded actuarial
accrued lability was $1.7 bilion and $2.0 billion, respectively.
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These amounts are presented as Prior Service Contributions
Receivable on the financial statements. New prior service
fiabifities resulting from employers entering the WRS or intreasing
their-prior service coverage are recognized as contributions'in the
year service is granted-and are added to the Prior ‘Service
aniﬁbutéons ; Re'cai_vé_b!e. - Employer contributions - for - prior
service reduce the recelvable. The receivable is increased as of
calendar year end with interest af the assumed interest rate of 8
percent, :

Employer Pension f;cists

'I“?]e Siates Lfnfunded ilabihty as of June 3(} 2€}{}3 was $722 2
million, or 43.8 percent of the totai WRS unfunded hablilty af $1.7
billion.  This liability is dete;m;ned in. accordance. with the
provisions of GASB Statement No. 27. The State's unfunded
habtiity fot' pner service is recorded in the govammenta actmt;es

NGTE 14, MILWAUKEE RET]REM&&T SYSTEM

The ME_IwasJkee Rezirement System: (MRS}, w%th-p_ar_ticiiaation by
the ‘City of Miwaukee Refirement System and- the Milwaukee
Public Schools Retirement System, is reported as an Envastment
Trust Fund MRS pas’ttc&pants provide assets 1o the State of
Wssconsm, Department of Emplcyee Tmsi Funds (DETF} for
investing in its Fixed Retirement Investment Trust (FRIT) and the
Variable -Retirement “Investment Trust (VRIT), funds of the

- Wisconsin -Retirement System (WRS). Participation of the MRS

in ‘the FRIT. abd VRIT %5 described in the DETF Adminisifazéve

_ Code Chapier 10.12. . The State of Wcsconsm !nvestmem Board
(SWIB): manages the FRIT arsci VRlT with oversaghi by a Board of
'Tmsiees as aathortzed in; Wis.. Stat. 25. 14 and 2617, SWiﬁ is

not registe_red _wrth th_e _S_ec_un%}es and Exchange Commls_szon as
an investment company.

The investments &f the FRIT and VRIT consist of a highly
diversified portfolic of securities.  Wis. Stat. 25.17(3)(a) allow
investments in lpans, securities and any other investmenis as
authorized by Wis. Stai. 62022 Permitted classes of
investments include bonds of governmental urnits "or-of private
corporations, loans secured by morigages, preferred or common
stock, real property and other investments not specifically
prohibited by statute. :

Investments are revalued monthly fo fair value, wi_t_h' unrealized
gaing and losses reflected in income.

Monthly, the DETF distributes a pro-rata share of the total FRIT
and VRIT earnings less  adminisirative expenses o the MRS
accounts. The MRS acoounts are adjusted to fair value and

gainsiosses  are. recorded directly. in. the. accounts . per DETF

Administrative Code, Chapter 10.12{2).
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" Neither State statute, a legal provision nor a legally binding
- guarantee exists o support the value of shares.

At June 30, 2003, the FRIT and VRIT held $57,702.7 milion of

‘investments of which includes $3,200.5 million of securities
. fending coliateral. The following tables present investments of the

) .-Fi_ﬁed Retirement investment Trust:

FRIT and VRIT at June 30, 2003, categorized in accordance with
the level of risk requiremenis of GASB Statement No. 3 {in
millions):

Category Fair
1 2 3 Value
" Fixed Income % 2,307.4 $ - $ - $ 9,307.4
‘Stocks 11,633.8 - - 11,633.8
Repurchase Agreements 182.7 - - 182.7
Certificates of Deposit 47.6 - - 47.8
- Totat L . $ 21,171.5 3 e $ - 211715
© - Limited Partnerships 2,693.1
Pogled Multi-Asset Fund 285.0
| Pooled Equities 18,062.7
~Pooled Bonds 5,260.9
Mortgages 728.7
Real Estate Owned 436.6
~ Custodial Pooled Cash and Equivaients 299.0
Investments Held by Broker Dealers under Securities Loans:
Fixedincome 0 T T 1,9t4.9
Equities ™ 1,038.2
- - Securities Lending Cash Collateral Pooled Investrments 713.8
' T § 526021
Variable Retirement Investment Trust:
: Category Fair
1 2 3 Value
Fixed income 3 101.8 5 - $ - $ 101.8
. Btocks 2,286.8 - - 228686
Repurchase Agreements 9.3 - - 9.3
Certificates of Deposit 2.4 - - 2.4
Total 3 2.400.1 ¥ - g - 24001
Pooled Equifies 24956
Pooled Cash and Equivalents 371
Investments Held by Broker Dealars under Securiles Loans:
Equities 149.3
Securities Lending Cash Collateral Poolad Investments 36.4
§ 5,118.5
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The feugwmg scheduls provides summary information by investment classification for the FRIT at June 30, 2003 (in thousands):

interest/Coupon Maturity

Classification Rates Dates . Cost Fair Valug
Fixed Income _ Variable and 0.11024.0 . 7/03 to 11/49 $ 13146466  § 14480276
Common and Preferred Stock NiA N/A 31,621,935 30,734,716
Limited Parinerships N/A NIA 2,908,360 2,693,113
Mortgages B.77 t012.25 8/04 to 6/22 629,232 726,725
Real Estate Owned o N/A N/A 334,554 436,628
Muti-Asset . R N/A NIA 250,000 284,967
- Total investments o R $ 48,900,548 §49,365,425

The following schedule provides summary information by investment classification for the VRIT at June 30, 2003 (in thousands):

T jntereétl(:oupon Ma;urity .

. ~Classification L .. Rates - Dates Cost " “Fair Vaiue
Fixedlncome . - NA. 1003 $ 25 0§ .25
-Common and Preferred Stock N/A NIA 5,179,166 4,931,491

Total Investments ~ - o $ 5179,191 $ 4,931,516

Significant financial data for the FRIT and VRIT for the year ended June 30, 2003 is presented below (in thousands):

Fixed Retirement Investment Trust Fixed Rétirement Investment Trust L
' Condensed Statement of Net Assets Gondensed Statement of Changes in Net Assets_
As of June 30, 2003 .For the Year Ended June 30, 2003
Assets: S o . Additions:
Cashand Cash Equivalents . ..~ § 890,450 " Net Increase {Decrease ) in . .
Securities Lending Collateral 3,053,567 Fair Value of investments 5 1,179,730
investnﬁent Receivables 252,211 Interest ' 881,870
Investments, &t Fair Value 49,365425 Dividends 237,524
Other Assets . -~ . 3,154, Securities Lending Income 40,238
Total Assets 53,564,807 Other 98,468
' Totat Additions 2,237,830
Liabilities: EAE
Securities Lending Coilateral Liability 3,053,567 Deductions:
Investment Payables 239470 invesiment Expense 145,873
Totai Liabilities 3,293,087 Securities Lending Rebates and Fees 32,011
Net Withdrawals by Pool Participants 1,059,498
Net Assets Held in Trust of! Total Deductions 1,237,382
Internal Investment Pool Participants 50,224,150 R
Milwaukee Retirement System 47 620 Net Increase {Decrease) 1,000,447
$.50271770 B

Net Assets Held in Trust for Pool Participants :
Beginning of Year 48,271,323

End of Year § 50,271,770

104



g :;State-of- Wisconsin - Notes to The Financial Statements

Variable Retirement Investment Trust - . - Variable Retirement Investment Trust

Condensed Statement of Net Assets Condensed-Statement of Changes in Net Assets
As of June 30, 2003 _ - - -Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2003
Assets: : Additions: :
.Cash and Cash-Equivalents $ 135,753 Ngt inerease (Decrease) in .
-+ - Securities Lending Coliateral _ 155,804 Fair Value of Investments $  (176,887)
~ Investment Receivables . _Aa,567 Interast 1,388
Investments, at Fair Value 4,931,516 Dividends - = 38873
Total Assets 5,233,740 - Securities Lending Income - 1,746
o . Total Additions : (134,989)
 Liabilities: I ' KRR
Securities Lending Collateral Liability 165,904 Deductions: - i
investment Payaixies 27.327 investment Expense 10425
Total Liabilities 183,231 *Securities Lending Rebates and Fees 1.02¢ -
' L ' o " “Net Withdrawals by Pool Paticipants 260,992
. Net Assets Held in Trust of: _ “fotal Deductions Co 281,448
internal Investrmient Pool Participants 5,030,104 b ' s L
Milwaukee Retirement System 20,408 Net Izﬁ%:réase {Devrease) S (416,435)

$ 5050509 -
Net Assets Held In Trust for Pool Participants

“Beginning of Year ' - 5466044
End of Year $ 5,050,508
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NOTE 15. OTHER EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS

I addition 1o providing pension benefits, the State participates in
the Department of Employee Trust Funds sdministered post
retirement e ingsurance and health insurance benefit programs.
The State provides life and health insurance benefits -for Tetired
employees in accordance with Chapter 40 of the ‘Wisconsgin
Statutes :

Post retirement life insurance is provided to employees refiring
‘before age 85 if thay (1) have 20 years-.of creditable service, and
' ':(2} are eilgzble for a ret;rement annuity. This coverage is at the
employee's expense {employee must pay the full premium) until
age 65 when reduced coverage is provided at no cost. Employees
retiring at or after age 65 are immediately eligible for reduced
coverage at no cost, Begmmng in the manth in which an insured
anpitant reaches age 65, :premiums ‘are no jonger coliected and
coverage is con’unued for ife. Approximatety '12 809 State
annuitants surremty qua lfy for coverage without premium.  Post
: ret:rement life insurance i fully insured by an. indepandent
insurance carrier. Premiums are prefunded with empleyer paid
premiums during the employee’s aclive career. . The amount of
premiums Is determined by the insurer. The accrued ilabl ity and
asssis specifically relafed to post em;}ioyment benefits could not
be determined.

In accordance with Chapter 40, Wisconsin Statutes, the State also
provides that employees refiing and beginning an immediate
annuity are eligible for conversion of unused sick leave fo post
refirement health insurance. = At the time of eligibifity for an
zmmed;aze annuity - or empioyees death, that ~employee's
accumulated unused sick feave balance may be converted at the
employee's current rate of pay to credits for the payment of health
insyrance premiums for the employee or the employee's surviving
dependents, The program also provides partial matching of sick
leave accumulation depégding on years of service and
employment category. Health insurance premiums are paid on the
employee, or employes’s dependents behalf, until the sick leave
conversion credits are exhausted. Al that ime, the emptoyee has
the option to continue coverage by paying the total cost of the
premiums. Approximately 8,880 annuitants are currently receiving
health insurance coverage through sick leave conversion credits,
Accumulated sick leave conversion is prefunded based on an
actuarially determined percentage of payroll.  The actuarial
vajuation is based on the eniry age actuarial cost method.

Significant actuarial assumptions include an 8 percent assumed
interest rate, 4.5 percent assumed annual salary growth, and an
average sick leave accumulation of 8.4 days per yesar for non-
University employees and 7.4 days per year for University
amployees. The assets and reserves of the sick leave conversion
program are accounted for in a fiduciary fund. The accrued
liability for the post retirement health insurance benefits at
December 31, 2002, determined through an actuarial valuation
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performed on that date, was $1,308.7 milion, The program's
asseis on fhal date were $773.1 mition. The unfunded Kability
was $536.6 million.

Assets of the life insurance and heslth insurance benefit programs
are valued at fair value,

The State's postemployment life and health insurance required
and actual contributions totaled $4.3 million and $45.4 -million,
respectively, during the calendar year ended Detember 31, 2002.
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" NOTE 16. PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOLS
ADMINISTERED BY THE DEPARTMENT
OF EMPLOYEE TRUST FUNDS

- The Department of Employee Trust Funds operates four public

~entity risk pools: group health insurance, group income

continuation insurance, protective occupation duty disability

insurance and longterm disability instrance. The information

provided in this note appiies to the pericd ending December 31,
2002,

A Description of Funds

The"Héal't?l insurance Fund offers group health insurance for

* current and retired employees of the State government and of

.participaﬁng' tocal publié employers. Al public employers in the

_State are eligible to participate. Two hundred ninety-seven locat

_ ~employers plus the State currently participate. - The State and local

government ';mrtioné of the fund are accounted for separately and

- have separate contribution rates, benefits, and actuarial

- “valuations. The fund includes both a self-insured, fee-for-service

- pla'n as wall as various prepaid plans, priniarily Health
" Maintenance Organizations (HMO's).

. The Incoms Condinuation Insurance Fund offers disability wage

continuation insurance for current employees of the State
~government and of participating local public employers. Al public
- employers in the State are eligible to participate. One hundred
~thirty-eight local emplovers plus the State currently parficipate.
" The State and local govemment portions of the fund are
- ~accounted -for separately and have separate confribution rates,
- benefits, and actuarial valuations. The plan is self-insured,

' The Duty Disability Fund offers special disability insurance for
"State and focal Wisconsin Retirerment System participants in
protective occupations. Parficipation in the program is mandatory

—-for -all Wisconsin Relirement System employers with protective

occupation employees. Four hundred sixty-six local employers

plus the State currently participate. The plan is self-insured and
~- rigk is shared betwsen the State and local portions of the plan.

The Long-term Disability Insurance Fund offers long-term disability
benefits to parficipants in the Wisconsin Retirement System
(WRS). The long-term disability benefits provided by this program

~are an alternative coverage to that currently provided by the WRS.
All new WRS participants on or after Oclober 15, 1992, are eligible
only for the long-term disabilily insurance coverage, while
participating employees active prior fo October 15, 1982, may
elect coverage through WRS or the long-term disability insurance
pregram.
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B. Accounting Policies for Risk Pools

Basis of Accounting - All Public Entity Risk Pools are accounted
for in enterprise funds using the full accrual basis of accounting
and the flow of economic resources measurement focus.

Valuation of investments - Assels of the Health Insurance Fung
are invested in the State Investment Fund, Assets of the Income
Continuation Insurance, Duty Disability and Long-term Disabitity
Insurance funds are invested in the fixed refirement investment
trust. investments are vaiued at fair value.

Unpaid Claims Liabilities - Claims Habilities are based on
estimates of the uilimate cost of claims that have been reported
but not settled, and of claims that have been incurred but not
reported. The estimate includes the effects of inflation and other
socletal and economic factors.  Adjustments to claims liabilities
are charged or credited to expense in the periods in which they
are made. Unpaid claims liability is presented at face value and is
rot discountad for health insurance. It is discounted using interest
rates of 8 percent for incame continuation and long-term disability
insurance, and 5 percent duly disability insurance. The fiabilities
for iIncome continuation, long-term disability, heaith insurance and
duty disabllity insurance were determined by actuarial methods.
The Duty Disability Fund's accounting deficit is being amortized
over a twenty-three year period beginning January 1, 2000. Face
values are not available. ’

Administrative Expenses - All maintenance expenses  are
expensed in the periad in which they are incurred.  Acquisition
costs are immaterial and are freated as maintenance expenses,
Premium deficiencies are not calculated because acquisition costs
are immaterial. Claim adjustment expenses are also immaterial..

Reinsurance - Health insurance plans provided by MMO's and
health insurance for local government annultants are fully insured
by outside insurers. All remaining risk is self-insured with no
reinsurance coverage.

Risk Transfer - Participating employers are not subject to
suppiemental assessments in the event of deficiencies. f the
assets of the fund were exhausted, participating employers would
net be responsibie for the fund's liabilities.

Premium Seling - Premiums are established by the Group
Insurance Board (Heaith,' Income Continuation Insurance and
Long-term Disability Insurance) and the Employse Trust Funds
Board (Duty Disabilily} in consultation with actuaries.
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C i}npald Claims Liabilities .

As drscussed in Sectioni B-of this’ Note sach fund establishes a
liabitity for both reported and unreported insured events, which is
an estimate ‘of future payments of Josses. . - The ‘following
représants changes in those aggregate liabiies for the
. noprginsured portion of each fund dunng Caleﬁdar Year 2002 {in

mill sons}
: Income Long-term
" Health Continuation ~ Duty Disability
Insurance insurance " Disability Easurane&
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
__Unpaid claims. a_ét beginning of the calendar year  $128 $142  $570 8464 $3183  $2892  $343 $29.2

3ncurreé cialms
Pr;w;s;on §cr msared events of the current ca endar N ] i ) o .
ye_ar DR LT . oo 705 3.7 17.1 289 30.7 354 1.7 100

Ci;ahge_s_ in.provision for insured events of prior.

. calendaryears Lo 54 (5.3) (2.8) {6.2) ~(88) 138 30 (13
Tﬁtal'ir%curféd claims E '_ o 65.1 68.4 14.3 22.7 24.1 48.3 4.7 -B.8
Payments ) : : o
. Claims, and claim ad;us%mer;t expenses attnbutabie to ) - : .
: tr}surec__i evenis of the current calendar year ;oo .o.B28 819 35 BB 2. 03 0008

-.C!ai_ms'arid claim adjustment éxpéns'es.'a_t!r'i_butabie o . : . - :
‘insured events of prior calendar years 7.3 87 96 6.8 21.4 198 52 3.2

Total Payments ~ - - : 608 698 131 121 216 202 52 37

Total unpaid claims expenses at end of the calendar o
year o 381 § 128 8582  357.0 $320.8 $3183 $438 §343

D. Trend information

Historical trend information showing revenue and claims development information is presented in the Department of Employee Trust Funds
audited financial statements. The separately issued financial report for the year ended December 31, 2002 wilt be available in ‘Calendar Year
2004. Capies of these and prior years staterents may be requested from:

The Department of Employee Trust Funds
801 West Badger Road

P.C. Box 7931

Madison, Wisconsin 53707- 7931
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: NOTE 17, s&w-msuamc&

: :it is the genseral poiusy of the Sfate not to purchase commercial
insurance for the risks of josses to which # is exposed. instead,
':'Ehe State Delieves it is more economical ‘fo ‘manage. #s risks
“internally and set aside assets for clalm setfiement in its internal
i service fund, the Risk ‘Management Fund. . The fund servicas
'mb_st claims for rsk of loss o which the State is .exposed,
‘including damage to- State owned property, liability for property
IR i:iama‘ges and injuries 1o third parties, and worker's compensation.
i Al funds and agenmes of :the State: pamc:pata in -the Rigk
e :Maﬁagement Fund: o : .

“State ?roperty ﬂamage

-'Property damages fc State-owned properties are covered by the
State's seii-funded property program up to $2.5 milfion per
““occurrence and $2.7. million “annual aggregate. When claims,
'.__-:whmh exceed $25,000 per occurrence, total $2.7 million, ‘the
_'..:Staies prwate insurance becomes. avaslabe Losses fo property
" ipeeurring -after the . thresheld are first -subject to a 525,000
" ‘deductible. The amount of foss in excess of $25,000 is covered
~ by the State’s private insurance company. During Fiscal Year
... 2003, the excess insurance limits were writien to $300 million.

The liablliies for State property damage are reported when it is

' probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can

" be reasonably estimated. The estimate far future benefits and

‘loss liabilities is based on the reserves on open claims and paid

“tlaims.  Losses incurred but not regc)ﬂ:ed are expected to be

G :mmatana Claims incurred but not pazd as of June 30, 2003 are
& esﬁtmated to total $2.8 million.

: Property Damages and Bodily injuries to Third Parties

‘The State is self-funded for third party liability to a level of $3
- million per accurrence and purchases insurance in excess of this
‘seif-funded retention. The policy limit during Fiscal Year 2003

. was $50 million.

The liabilities for property damages and injuries to third parties
are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the
amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated. The estimate
for fudure benefits and loss liabilities for the prior fiscal year was
the reserves on open claims. The estimate for future benefits and
loss llabllities is calculated by an actuary based on the reserves
on open claims and prior experience. No liability is reported for
environmental impairment lability claims either inoured or
incurred but not reported because existing case law makes it
..unlikely the State would be heid Habie for material amounts.
Because actual claims liabilities depend upen complex factors
such as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards,
the process used in computing claims liability does not

necassarily result in an -exact amount. - -Claims incurred it not
paid as of June 30, 2003 are estimated to total $46.4 million,

Worker's Compensation

The Worker's Compensation Program was created by Wisconsin
Statutes Chapte'r 102 to provide benefits-to workers injured on the
job. All employees of the State are included in the program. An
injury is covered under worker's compensation i it is caused by
an acc;éent that arose ouf of and in the course of emptoyment

The respons;bﬂtty for c!atmmg comgesnsatson is on the empioyee
A claim must be f Hhed with the program within two years from the
date.of injury, otherwise the claim is not allowable,

The worker's compensation liability has been determined by an
actuary using paid claims and current claims reserves. Liabiiiﬁes
include an amaunt for claims that have been incurred but not
reported Secal.zse actua! ctalms Habilities are affected by
external facicrs. the process usad in computing claims habﬁmes :
does nat necessanty result in an exact amount. Claims incurred
but not paid as of June 30, 20&3 are estimated o {otal %9‘!
mltlxor;

Changes in the balances of claims liability for the 'Risk
Management Fund during the current and prior fiscal years are as
follows {in thousands):

2003 2002
Beginning of fiscal year liability $ 111,821 S 19{},285
Gurrent year claims and changes ' :
in estimates AR ' 80,509 30, 226
Calm_pameﬂts ' o (24,065) (18,690)

Balance at fiscal year-end

$ 118285 § 111829

Annuity Contracts

The Risk Management Fund purchased annuity contracts in
various claimants’ names to satisfy claim liabililes. The likelihood
that the fund wili be required to make future payments on those
claims is remofe and, therefore, the fund is considered to havs
satisfied its primary fiabllity to the claimants. Accordingly, the
annusty coniracts are not reported in, and the related i:abslmes are
removed from, the fund's balance shest. The aggrega&e
autstanding amount of liabiities removed from the finarcial
statemnents at June 30, 2003 is § 2.9 miflion.
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NOTE 18. lNSURANCE FU&DS
Prlmary Governmant

A. Local Government Pmperty Irzsurance Fund

Created by the Leg;siature in: 19‘&1 the purpose of the Local
Govemment F’_roperty insurance -Fund . is. to- provide property
insurance coverage to tax-supported local government units such
as ‘counties, towns, villages, cities.' school districts and fibrary
_beards Pmperiy insured includes governiment butldéngs schogls,
tibraries and ‘motor vemcles Coverage is avaﬂable on an-optional
‘basis.  As of June 30, 2093 ‘the ‘Local Govemment Property
insurance Fund insured 1,206 local gcvemmantal units. The total
amount of msurance in force as of June 30 2003 was $32.7
biihon

'_Valuat:on of Cash Eqmvaients and fnvestmen!s Al mvestmenis

of tb@ Local Govamment Pmpﬁrty insumnce Fund arg manageé
by the State of Wlscaasm mvestment Bcard as dnscussed in Note
5B tothe i nanmat statemanis At June 30, 2003, the fund had
511 5 million of shares in ‘the State Investment Fund which are
considered cash equaients and $12.4 milion of high grade,
long-term, fxed-u%mﬂ?e obligations. - ..

Premium - Unearned premium 'reported as deferred revenue
represents the daily pro rata portion of premlum written which is
applicable to the anexpired terms of the insurance pohcaes in
' force Policies are general Iy wrstten for annual terms.

_Unpa:d Cfa:ms L:ab;[mes - The Lacai Govemmen? Pmpefty
Ingurance - Fund eszabhshes future penefits and loss liabliities
based on eshmazes :}f the ltimate cast of claims (ancludmg fi.mzre
claim’ ad;ustment expenses; that have been reporied but ‘not
settied, and ‘of ciaims that have been mcurrecé bt not re;mrted
Estimated amounts-of reinsurance recoverable on unpaid claims
" are deducted from the fiability for unpaid claims. - Claims liabilities
are recsmputad panodscaily to produce current’ esfimates that
reflect recent sgitlements, claim frequency, am} other ecommxc
factors Ad;ustments io futuire benef‘ ts and loss i;ablhtxes are
chargeci or credited o experzse in the penoc%s in which they are
made,

Pohcy Acqws:taan Casts - Since the Local Govemment Property
lﬂsurance Furd has no marketing staff and incurs no sales
commsssms acquisition costs are minimal and charged fo
operations as incurred.

Premium Deflciency — Investment income s considered ih
determining whether a premium deficiency exists. No premium
deficiency existed at June 30, 2003,

Reinsurance - The Local Government Property Insurance Fund
uses reinsurance agreemenis o reduce its exposure fo large
losses on all types of insured events. Reinsurance permits
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recovery of a portion of losses from reinsurers, 'ai{;h_'odgh it does
not discharge the primary liability of the fund as direct insurer of
the risks reinsured. The fund does not report reinsured ﬁsks as
liabiiiies uness it is probable that those risks will not be covered
by reinsurers. -As of June 30, 2003 the fund had $240 million of
per -occﬂfrenoe excess of loss reinsurance in force with a-$2.0
million combined single limit retention for each-occurrence; .and
an annual aggregate reinsurance contract with: a $18.0 mﬂhcﬁ
annual aggragate retention plus a per claim retention: of - $5
thousand once the aggregate is met, as respecis ocourrences for
the term of the agreement. - Premium ceded to rem_swrer_s.éumg
the fiscal year amounted to $4.6 million. Rairzsdraacé..%css-aﬂd
adjusting expense recoveries earned for the year amﬁL:m'ted 1o
$3.7 mnilfion. e

Unpaid Claims Liabilities

As éiscﬁsséé above, the Local Government Praperty' Insurance
Fund establishes -a lability for both repaﬁéd_ and. unreported
insured events, which includes estimates of both future payments
of losses. and related claim adjustment expenses. The following

represents changes in those aggregate labilities for:'the fund

during the past fwo fiscal years (in thousands}):
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2003 2002

.- Unpaid claims and claim adjustment

 ‘expenses at beginning of the year $11,773  $14436

" Less: Reinsurance recoverable {4,708y (5,097)
© 7 Net unpaid foss liability at begirning ' o
© ofyear B 7,067 8,330

-incurred claims and claim adjustment
. expenses: _
" Provision for insured events of the

- current yaar 14,408 13,858
increase (decrease) in provision for
insured events of prior years 446 301
Total incurrad claims and claim
~ adjustment expenses 14,852 14,159
. ﬁ'.'_Paymen'ﬁs: _
' Clai_fas and claim adjustmeﬁt
* expenses attributable to insured
avents of the current year 9,040 7,278
Claims and ciaim adjustment
expenses atiributable to insured
averds prior years 7,169 8,153
. Total payments 16,209 15431
- .oNet unpaid claims and claim adjustment
: expenses at end of year 5710 7,067
K _'_Reinsurance recoverable 5,468 4,706
“Total unpaid claims and claim
© adjustment expenses $12,178  $11.773

'Trend Information

. Historical trend information showing revenue and claims

development information is presented in the Office of the
Commissioner of Insurance June 30, 2003 financial statemenis.
Copies of these slatemenis may be requested from:

Cffice of the Commissiorer of Insurance
125 South Webster Stroet
Madison, Wisconsin 53702
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8. State Life Insurance Fund

The State Life Insurance Fund was created under Chapter 807,
Wisconsin  Statutes, to offer life insurance fo residents of
Wisconsin in @ manner similar {o private insurers. This fund
functions much like a mutual life insurance company and is
subject to the same reguiatory requirements as any life insurance
company licensed {o operate in Wisconsin.

Premiums are reported as earned when due. Benefits and
expenses are associated with eamed premitms so as to resultin
recognition of profits over the life of the contracts. . This
association is accomplished by means of the provision for
abilities for future benefiis and the amortization of acquisition
costs.

The costs of policy issuance and underwriting, all of which vary
with, and are primarily related to, the production of new business,
have been deferred. These deferred acquisition cosis are
amortized over a forly year period, considered representative of
the life of the contract. The amortization is in proportion to the
ratio of annual in-force business to the amount of business
Issued. Such anticipated in-force business was estimated using
similar assumptions to those used for computing liabilities for
future policy benefits.

Deferred Acquisition Cost Assumptions

Issue Interest Lapse

Years Rate Rate Mortality
1913-1966 3.0% 2.0% None
1867-1876 3.0 2.0 None
1877-1985 4.0 2.0 None
1986-1994 5.0 2.0 None
18856+ 4.0 2.0 None

The State Life Insurance Fund does not pay commissions nor
does it incur agent expenses.
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Future benefits and loss liabilities have'been computed by the net
level premium method based upon estimated future investment
yield and mortality. The composition of fiabilities and the mare
material assumptions pertinent thereto are presented betow (in
thoasands) :

Ordinary Life

Amount of
isstie insurance Policy
Year i Force Liability
19131866 % 13815 % - B9M
1967-1876 - 39,280 . 1BETTC
1877-1985 84,936 20,2583
1986-1994 58,550 8,080
1995+ 31,754 2,492

§ 225144 & 53,346
Bases of Ass_&m#ticn_s '
Issue “interest - .
Year ‘Rate Mortality
19131866 3.0% - -Amarican Experience, ANB*

1967-1876 30
1977-1985 4.0

1958 C30, ALB, Unisex

1858 CS0, ALB, ?emaie Setback
- :3years.

1880 €S0, ALB, Aggregaie

1880 CSO, ALB, Aggregale

1986-1994 5.0
1005+ 40 .

+ Age Last Birthday

All of the State Life insurance Fund's ordinary life insurance in
force is participating. - This fund is required by statute {o maintain
surplus at a level between 7 percent and 10 percem of statutory
admitted assets as far as practicably posstble All excess surplus
is to be retumed to the policyholders in the form of policyholder
dividends. Policyholder gividends are declared each year.in arder
1o achieve the required level of surplus.

The statutory assets at December 31, 2002 were $77.7 miliion
and the statutory capital and surplus were $5.1 million, and the
capital and surplus at June 30, 2003 was $13.5 million.
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c. Patlents Compensatacn Fund

The Patients Compensation Fund was created in ’3975 for the
purpose of providing excess medical malpractice. insurance for
health care providers in the state. The F‘atlems Compensattsn
Fund pays i?\at portion of a medical maipractice claim which is in
excess of the legal primary insurance limit pressﬂbed urzder aw,
or the maximum Hability fimit for which the health prowder is
Insured, whichever limit is greater. Most health care providers
permanentéy practzc;ng or gperating in the State of Wlsconsm are
required fo pay Patients Compensation Fund operatmg faes Rlsk
of loss is retamed by the fund.

The Future Benef ts and Loss Liability Account snciudes mdméuat
case estimates for reported iosses and estimates for mcarred but
nod reported losses based upon the projected ul%;mate losses.
indawduai case estimates of the liability for reparted iosses and
net josses pa:d from inception of the Patlenis Com;)ensaisan Fimd
are deducted from the projected ullimale loss ilabﬂmes to
determine the habmty for ‘incurred but noi reported Eosses as of
June 30, 2003 as follows (in thousands)

$ . 1372113

Projected ultimate loss liability

Less: Nét'k}s's paid from inception {540,120)
Less: Liability for reported losses - .{31,9686)
i.zab;i:ty for mcurrecf but not reported losses $ 800,027

The Future Benefits and Loss Liability Accourt also includes a
pr{)\f;smn for the estimated future payment of the costs to settie
claims. ‘These ultimate loss adjustment expenrses as of June 39,
2003 are esfimated at 5.75 percent of the. pro;ec%ed uit]mate ioss
liabilities. The loss ressrves are actuarially determined. The loss
adjustment expenses paid from the incepfion of the Patienis
Compensation Fund are deducted from the projected ultimate
loss adjustment expenses provision to determine the liabifity for
koss adiustment expenses as of June 30, 2003 as follows (in
thousands):

Projected ultimate loss adjustment expense

liahiiity $ 78,897
Less: Loss adjustment expense paid from )

inception (37,751}
Liability for loss adjustment expense $ 41,746

The uncertainties inherent in projecting the frequency and severity
of large claims because of the Patienis Compensation Fund's
unlimited  liability coverage, and extended reporting and
settlement perods, makes it likely that the amounts ultimately
paid will differ from the recorded estimated fiabifities. These
differences cannot be quantified.
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s ';Th_é Jiabllity for reported losses, lability for incurred but not
- reported -iosses, and liability for ioss adjusiment expense are
S maintained on a-present value basis with the difference from full
“value being reported as a contra account to the loss reserve
_ '_: 'Eia'biiities' The loss reserve liabilities are discounted only to the
» 'extent that they are matched by cash and invested assets.  If all
i .toss jiabilities. are discounted, the discounted loss lzablinty would
“ be as follows as of June 30, 2003 (in thousands):

s Estimated anpazf} loss liabilities

$ 800,027
 Esfimated unpaid loss adjustment expense 471,146
* Total estimated loss liabiiities . .B41,173.
" Less: ‘Amount represehting interest (218,285)
" Discounted ioss liabifities $ B22888

: The future ._n'en'eﬁ__ts and loss iia'biii_ties are pontinbaily _re'via\.itac_i as
: _;_'a'djustmanis fo these liabilities become . necessary. .Such
i ad;ustmenfs are reﬂected ;n current operatscns Because of the
“changes in these eshmates, the benefit expense for the fiscal
’ '-Z_year is not necessarily indicative of the loss experience for the
- year.

©On behalf of the Fund’s Board, the Office of the Commissioner of
- Insurance contracted for an actuarial audit of the Patients
- :'_Qampensatibn Fund, which includes a review by ancther actuary
" of the reasonablensss of the actuarial methodology and
. 'assumptéons used in developing estimates of the Fund's loss
liabilities. A vommittes of the Board is currently in the process of
. _'actc%ressmg prcfessuona! dssagreements regardmg pral;mmary
-::audli resuits, which are not expected to be resolved until & ater
" date. The Board betieves the current estimate of the Fund’s loss
fiabilities Is a reasonable estimate.

' :__1}. Health Insurance Risk Sharing Plan

The Health Insurance Risk Sharing Plan Fund was established in
1980 to provide major medical and Medicare supplemental
insurance for persons unable to obtain this insurance in the
private market or who otherwise gualify for eligibility under Section
148.12, Wis. Stats. The Health Insurance Risk Sharing Plan is
funded primarity by premiums paid by insureds of the pian,
assassments made to participating insurers, reduction of provider
paymenis rates, and general purpose revenue from the State of
Wisconsin,

The financial statements of the Health Insurance Risk Sharing
Plan fund are prepared in conformity with generally accepted
“atcounting principles for governments as prescribsd by the
Governmental  Accounting Standards Board.  Premiums are
racoghized as revenues over the terms of the insurance policies,
and & liability for uneamed premiums is estabiished to reflect
premiums received applicable to subseguent accounting periods.
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Participating insurers are assessed every . six months, and
revenus is recognized in the period covered by the assessments.

The future benefits and loss liabilities include foss reserves
reflecting the accumuiation of losses reported but not paid prior to
the close of the accounting period and estimates of incurred but
unreporied fosses. Loss reserves are actuarially determined afd
are based on historical pattermns of claim payments and représent
the estimated ulimate cost of setfling Giaims incurred prior to
June 30. " Due fo the inherent uncerainties in the mgen}ing_

‘process, loss reserves as ‘computed may not reflett the actual

bayments ultimately to be made. The methods for making's'u¢h
estimates “and for establishing the resulling reserves are
continually reviewed, and any adjustments are reflected in
earnings currenily. '

The following represents changes in the Future Benefit and Loss
Liakility ‘account balances for the prior twa fiscat years (m_
tbcusarscis)

2002

2003
Balance, beginning of year $ 15,296 $ 17,790
incurred related to: A
Current year 90,904 75,553
Prior years (3,815) {7,038}
Total Encyrred 87,089 68,518
Paid related to: . :
Current year 76,344 61,181
Prior years 10,494 9,851
Total Paid 86,838 7H,012
Balance, end of year $ 15,547 $ 15,296

The Future Benefits and Loss Liability Account also Enctudeé'a
reserve for loss adjustment costs to be incurred in settlement of
the claims provided for In the loss reserves.
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Component Umts

E. W:sconsm Health Ca;'e Llahmty lnsurance
Pfan '

.The WISCORESI"% Heaith Care Lsabilaty Insurance Ptan (ﬂze Plan) 13 a

statutory LGmcomomted assar;:aﬂcm estabhshed by rule: of the
Commissioner . of . Insurance. of -the State . of W;scanssn a8
.mandated .by . the . State - of Wssconsm legislaturs... The Ptan
prewdes health care. i;abtiity Insurance..and isabltliy ‘coverages
mrma!iy dncidentat. 1o health care lsabslrty insyrance to_eligible
health : care p;‘owders in. the ‘State "of Wtsconsm calmg dor
paymeﬁt of memaum prior. tc the effective date of the ;mlscy Al
insurers aﬂthoﬂzed to wnte g)ersonal injury liability insurance in
the State of Wisconsin, with certain minor exceptions, are
reqmred te be members of the Plan. '

“The Plan generates 1ts prem:um wntten revenue by se;l;ng
medical maipracnce msurance . Rates are - aaculateé in
aocordance with: generatiy acceptad ‘actuarial prir;mpfes The
-rates are set so zhat the Plan. w;[i be sei‘f—suppmrtmg Proﬁt is not
the Entenﬁ of the Pian

Smc:e ihe mcemlon cf the Ptan in 1975, the health care I;abtltty
covarage limits’ have incremsed ‘from $200 thousand per
occtirrance and $600 thousand -annual aggregate 1o the’ current
“Fimits. of $1.0 million per occurrence and. $3.0 mrmcn ‘annual

o .aggragate effective July 1, 1888. A generat liability coverage is

also available o pam{npatmg hea!i?l care providers with fimits of
$1.0 millien per occurrence and $3.0 million annual ‘aggregate
'éffective July 1, 199{) The Plan is not coverad under - -any
_'-ramstsrance coniracts :

In the event that sufﬂment funds are not available fcar ti\e sound

“financial operation of the Plan, all members shall, on a femporary
basis, confribute fo the financial needs of the Plan. Members
shall paft;ctpate in the contnbutfoﬁs in the pzoport;on of ‘their
respective premiyms 1o the aggregate premiums written by all
members of the Plan. Such assessments shall be receuped by
rate  increases applzed prospectively. There were no
assessments for the year ended December 31, 2002.

The future benefits and loss fiability includes arounis determined
from individual reported losses (case reserves) and an amount,
based on past experience, for losses incurred but not reported.
Such Habilities are necessarily based on estimates and, while
managemeni believes that the amounts are adequate, the
yltimate lHabiity wili differ from the amounts provided. The
methods for making such estimates and for establishing the
resulting lisbility are annually reviewed, and any adjustmenis are
reflected -in income currently. -Specific aceount -balances as -of
December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2002, are as follows (in
thousarnds)
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2002

Balance at January 1 $ 87,212 '$ 84,028

incurred retated to: R
Current year 4044 4413
Prior years (18,892)  {19,783)
Total Incurred (14,848)  (15,370)

Paid related o o
Curreni-year 62 -- B8
Prior years 622 1,378
Total paid e84 4,446
Balance at December 31 $ 51680 % 67212

There is inherent uncertainty in medical malpractice claims when

establishing -the estimates of unpaid losses and unpaid- loss

adjustment expenses. In 2002 and 2001, the Pian déczea*sed its
estimates of unpaid losses and unpaid loss adjustment expenses

'relateii o insured events of prior years. These decreases were

greater than the estr_mated josses incurred for the ‘current year,
causing negative incurred losses and loss adjustment expénses.
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: MGTE 19. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND CONDENSED FINANCIAL DATA
g Fﬂmary Govemment

_ ;"!’he State issues revenue bonds to finance the Leveraged Loan ngram- which is accounted for as part of the Environmental Improvement

“Fund, Investors in those bonds rely solely on the revenue generated ‘within the Levaraged Loan Program. Assets of this program are used

- primarily for loans for Wisconsin municipal waste water projects. . Condensed financial statement information of the Leveraged Loan Program
‘as of and for the year ended June 30, 2003 is presented beiow (in thousands}:

“Gondensed Balance Sheet . S Condeﬂsed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Chaages'

S o in Funquuity

. Assets:

o Current Assets 3 108,856 Operaiing-Rgversues (Expenses): i
L-Dkher Assets . : o ... .BBE&35h o . Loan interest . % 16,586
. Total Assets 3 797,206 Interest Expense (34,846)
R : ’ : e Other Operating Expenses {2,084) -

" Liabilities: _ o '_ - Operating income (Loss) (20,324)

' ‘Dueto Other Funds s 2017 ~ Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): S

- Other Current Liabiliies (including ' . _ Investment Income 23,366
.Current Portion of Long-term Debt) " 40,294 Transfers ) —_ 12000 -
Noncurrent Lisbilities : SERUGY _Criangein Fund Equity - 15,242

“Total Laabt!rtaes B s 531,280 Beginning Fund Equity 150,684
: Ending Fund Equity $ 165,826

Fund Ef;mty B

Restricted 165,926 Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

©Total Fund Equity 165,926 o

R R ' B Net Cash Provided (Used) by : D
" Total Liabiliies and Fund Equity g For208 - Operating Activiies 3 12,164)
S oo g Moncapital Financing Activities {58,626}
Investing Activities L {3,843)
. Netincrease (Decrease) . {64,633)
Begtrsnmg Cash and Cash Equivalents . 167.072"

Ending Cash and Cash Equivatents $ 102,438
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NOTE 20 COMPONENT UNITS — CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION -

Skgmficant ﬂnaﬂctal data for the State's four component units for the year ended December 31, 2002, May 31, 2003, or June 36 2003 is
presented below {in thousands):

Wisconsin Housing Wisconsin - -University of

Badger
and Economic - Health:Care Wisconsin Tobacco Asset
Bevelopment Liability Hospitals and Securitization .
Authority insurance Plan  Clinics Authority Corporation Total

Condense;i ﬂ_&fam_:é Sheet.

Assets: - . L
Cash, Investments aﬂd Otber Assets § 2,568,149 5 105267 $ 336460 $ 306,071 $ 3,313,047
Due _fram Primary Government 53 - 2912 - 2, 975
Capital Assets, Net 20,600 - 229,243 - 249, 852

Total Asseis § 2586821 § 105257 g, ...568615 3 308,071 $.3 5@%7’?5
g Laab;l;tres : . :
‘Accounts Payable aﬂé Other S DTN
‘Current Lsabt%x_taes S $ 158,338 $ 43492 $ 55917 $ 48822 § 306569
Due to Primary Government : 19 16 2,183 - 2,218

 Long-term Liabilities {Current and o S L
' No’nc’un‘eet Portions) 2,070, (}99 51,880 202,352 1,567,226 3,891,357
o T-_'c_;'tal Linbilties 2298 456 85,188 260452 1,616,048 4.200 144

'Fur:&._ﬁq.isity:. -
invested in Capital Assets, Net of R
. Related Debt - - 85,005 - __:__8__5,()05
Restricted ) 195,925 _ - 4,518 185,777 388,221
Unrestricted 162,440 10,080 218,639 {1,485753) -(1,1_34,_59&)

Total Fund Equity Coo BBB.ORE 10.080: .. 308,163 {1,309,976) (633368
"i“atal aniallatzes and Fund Eqmtv §- 25586!821 $ 105 267 $ 568615 $ 308074 §_ 3566775
'Condensed Sfatement r:f Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fuad Equsty
.;”—‘rogram Expenses
Depraeciation 3 5,041 § - $ 22613 $ - $ 28,654
Payments to Primary Government = - 500 - 500
Other ' 265,745 13,456 510,400 98,437 888,038
Total Program Expenses 271786 13456 533,613 28,437 917.192
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services 3,521 1,790 536,985 - 542,296
fnvestment and Interest Income 122,239 5,664 - - 127,803
Coerating Grants and Contribulions 128,210 - 449 - 128,659
Capital Grants and Contributions - - 856 - 655
Other 7,831 3,131 10,807 56 507 78276
Total Program Revenues 262 801 10,584 548 857 56,507 878,790
Net Program Revenue/(Expense) (8,985) {(2.872) 15,384 (41,930} {38,402)
General Revenues:
interest and Investment Earnings 16,261 - 3,601 8,983 34,845

Contributions 1o Endowments - : e 20 - 20

Change in Fund Equily 7,278 {(2.872) 25,005 (32,946) {3,537}

Fund Equity, Beginning of Year 351,089 12,851 283,158 (1,277,030) (829,832}

Fund Equity, End of Year $ 358,365 5 10,080 $ 308183 $ (1300078) §  (533369)
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" NOTE 21. RESTATEMENTS OF BEGINNING FUND BALANCES/FUND EQUITY/NET ASSETS AND
' : 'QTﬁER QHF\NGES

-.-The moancmatmns that fnilaw summarize restatements of the end- oi«year fund balanceffund equity/net assets as reporied in the 2002
Comprehensive Annuai Fmanclai Repari to the bagmnmg—of year fiund baiancesifumi equity/net assets reported for Fiscal Year 2003 {in

L 3.'thousands)

A. “Fund Staiezﬁents ~ Governmental Funds

Major Funds
Tobacco L )
Settlement Nonmajor Tolat
‘General Transportation Endowment Funds Governmendal
FundBelances June 30, 2002 ss feporisdinthe .
- 2002 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report $ (1.484,333) § 356330 8 83794 & 447,088 § (387,140}
ﬁmpioyee "rmst Fund Admirzisﬁ‘at%on - - - {842) {842}
Bmldnnng:Fund mdawfzcabmsfcapwai R Sl
L medstamnteﬁmandmpmrmlmms - - - {19,521} (10,521) -
- Dther adjustments of assets end labifiies -
o esofune 30,2002 “@ 1 _ - (2.506) {2,590)
g Fmaauanmmw,_'zwza_srestated $ (1.484,336) $ 633§ W37 § .. 4334105 . {441,502)
' ﬁﬁact of prior. peried adjustments on the amount
. of excess revenuss and other SoUrces over : K
i e@endmxasaﬂdt}therusesafffm i Year 2002 $ ... . .68 § - % - 8 (12817 § (11,834}
" 'B. Fund Statements - Proprietary Funds
Major Funds _
R o S Morigage . Unwarsz!yof Umplowth ) Intornal
Patients Environmental Loan’ Wisconsin Insurance  Nonmajor Total Service
Compensation _ Improvement  Repayment Systemn Reserve Funds Enterprise Funds
. _: Fund Equity June 30, 2002
.+ -@s reported in the 2002
-+ Comprehensive Annual
‘Financial Report 3 6604 § 861,732 § 76611 % 3,300,024 % 1586218 § 323,153 § 6,154,343 § 3,763
" University of Wisconsin System '
“copitalization of Energy Initiative
capital leases - - - 33,800 - - 33,800
University of Wisconsin System
restaternent for accurmulated
depreciation of UW Hosgital
and Clirdcs - - - 27.200 - - 27200 -
z‘;“acitiﬁes Cperations and Maintenance
fung adiustments for capital projects
- and related debt - - - - - - - 9,034
“Oiher adjustments of assets
gl liabilites as of
cdune 30,2002 e e e e - .. {6{)} &3 - 7837 . 2884 {195)
Fund Equity July 1, 2002 _
- a8 restated $ 5,604 - § 861,732 § 76,551 & 33686137 % 1686218 § 330086 §. 6228227 § 13507
T e
Effect of prior period
adiustments on the amount
of net change fund equity of
Fiecal Year 2002 3 -8 - 8 60 & - 8 -8 (75 § (136} § 2934

"7




State of Wisconsin

Notes to The Financial Statements

C. Fund Statements - Fiduciary Funds

Pension
and Other _ Private o
Employes Investment Purpose Total
Benefit Trust Trust Trust Fiduciary
Net Assets June 30, 2002 as reported in the _
2002 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report % 56011582 % 3832314 % ATBO43 8 60,322,938
Fund struchure reclassification: .
Employee Trust Funds Administration 751 . ™
Other acjustments of assets and liabiliies as of S
June 30, 2002 3.205 {3,066) (123} 15
Net Agsets July 1, 2002 as restated 3 55537 % 3820248 8 478818 § 80,323,704
e e e AP
Effect of prior pericd adjusiments on the smourt of
net increase in net assets of Fiscal Year 2002 % 3856 § {3.066) $ - 8 . BBY
D. Government-wide Statements
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Totals Units
Net Assets June 30, 2002 as reported in the I . .
2002 Comprehensive Anntial Financial Report 7852320 § 6,149,202 $ 13801612 % [(6524,985)
Adaption of GASB Staternent No. 34, Basic
Finansial Statements —~ and Management's Discussion
and Analysis - for.State and Local Governments,
and other applicable GASE pronouncements - - - (3,491}
Fund struchire reclassifications:
Employes Trust Fund Administration {842y - {8423 -
Building Trust Fund project classification changes
and cash batance adjustrments {10,521} - {10,521 -
Facilities Operations and Maintenance fund adiustments
* for capital projects and related debt 2,934 9,534 -
University of Wisconsin System capitaiization of Energy
Initiative capital leases - 33,800 33,800 i
University of Wisconsin Systern restatemant for
accumulated denreciation of UW Hospitat and Clinics 27,200 27,200 -
Crhher adiustments of assets and liabitities of
June 30, 2002 (32,285) 12,884 (19.400) {1,358}
NetAssets July _1_, _2062 as r%tated 7618806 § 8223176 3 13,841,782 & {629,832)
Effect of prior period adjustrments on the amount of
net increase in net assets of Fiscal Year 2002 11640 % (136) § 11508 % £2,888)
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'--w}faverable outcome for cerfain of i%wese proceedmgs could
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~NOTE 22. LITIGATION, CONTINGENCIES AND
COMMITMENTS
A. Litigation and Contingencies

_ The State is g defendant in varrous legat proceedmgs pertammg
" 10 matters incidental to the parformanca of routing gc)vemmentai
o;}efatioas

. Glaims and Judgments Reported in Govemmeniai Actwities

j’E’he State ascrues liabiliies related to-legal procesdings, if a ioss
-is'probable and reasonably sstirmable. :Such losses, totaling $2.2

' -'.mnﬂson on June 30, 2003 reported in the govemmentat activities,

: are discussed below:

.--Lifigation ~ The Department of Health and Family Services is
_' winvolved in varipus Jegal proceedings .where the ulfimate
- disposition is estimated at $.5 miliion, o :

- Other Claims ~ Work. injury :Supplemental Benefits - The Work
Cinjury - Supplemental Benefit - Fund, administered by  the
‘Pepartment of Workforce Development, provides compensatory
spayments to survivars of fatally injured employeeé or -disabled
.- -employees with work-related injuries. The fiabitity for annuities to
. :be paid to the above individuals totaled $1.7 million at June 30,

: :2993.

: Other Ciaims, Judgments and- Contmgencies

._:The State is also named as.8 parﬁy m other legal proceedings
. where the ulfimate dlsposmorz and consequence are not presently
“The potential : fiabifity -amount refating ‘1o an

impact the State by approximately $5.8 million. However, the
ultimate dispositions and consequences of any single legal
proceeding or all legal proceedings colfectively should not have a
material adverse effect on the State's financial position, except as
“noted below.

Corporate Tax Measured by Interest from U.S. Securities - in this
éarporate franchise tax case, American Family Mutual Insurance
Company and American Standard Insurance Company scught
refunds of taxes paid that were measured by 1.8, interest.

Federal law prohibits an income tax on U8, interest, but allows a
non-discriminatory franchise tax measured on U.S. interest. The
insurance companies argued that because bonds authorized by
the State for housing and development were exempt from State
taxes, that the franchise {ax was discriminatory. The State had
heretofore held that the exemption applied only to direct State
taxes and had undformly included interest on the State authorized
bonds in the franchise tax measure. The Wisconsin Tax Appeals
Commission and the County Clreuit Court upheld the State.
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The Court of Appeals, District IV, reversed the decisions, The
Supreme Court reversed the Court of Appeals. The taxpavers
maintain that the decision is not applicable fo 1993 and 1884,
The State maintains the principles of the decision are applicable
to the subsegquent years.

Due to the uncertainty in predicting the outcome, a liability has not
been recorded as of June 30, 2003,

Federal Pension income - The 1984-1088 period sstilements.with
approximately 3,200 military retirees and 14,000 civilizn retirees,
friggered by the United States Supreme Court ruling in Davis v.
Michigan Department of the Treasury are essentially completed.
The Davis case had held that a state govermnment viofates the
intergovernmental tax immunity clause when it provided for
taxation of federal pension benefits. Subsequent litigation with
other refirees on a varlely of issues has occurred, with the
Department prevailing in.afl instances.  Litigation is still in
progress on a limited number of issues. - The Department of
Revenue is confident that it will continue o prevail on this issue.
Because a fiscal impact cannot be readily determined if the State
were not to prevall, and due to the uncertainty in predlctmg the
outcome a liability has not been recorded.

Emdronmenfa! Clean-up Actions - The State is involved In
environmental clean-up of property owned hy the State that has
the potéﬂtiai to cause soil and groundwater contamination.
Fourteen sites have sofl andlor groundwaier contamanatlon
assocxatad with uﬂcﬁerground storage tanic releases wnm an
esttmated remedlatmn cmst of $2.5 mlilion

The State is also mvotved in eﬂwmnmental remed:at:oas on 6
properties that do not involve releases from underground sterage
tarks, with an estimated cost of $2.7 million.
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B. Commitments
anary Govemmer;t

In addition 1o 1ega proceadings, the State is party to commitments
which normally ocour i governmental operations.

in addition to e amount ‘of “encumbrances oulstanding at
June 30, 2003 reported as Fund Balance - Reserved for

Encumbrances, - additiorial - cbligations &t~ June 30, - 2003
representing multi-year, long-term “commitments included - (in
thousands): ' SRR : -
Transportation Fund - $ 274,396
Transportatzon Revenue Bonds Capstal

“Projects Fund 37,484
Genara! Fund ~ Depaﬂment of Commerce

-programs, mchdmg ecenomic and’ communtty

deveiopment programs : 4557

The Environmental Improvement Fund (tbe'_' Furd} was
established to administer the Cigan Water Fund Loan Program.
Loans are made to local units of 'gcvémment for wastewater
treatment projects for terms of up to 20 years. These loans are
made at a number of praacr;bed interest rates baseti .on
eﬁvsrcnmenta pmniy The :loans cumractuatly are ;evenue
.obisga’ﬂorzs or genera! ebkgatmns of the local govemmeniat unit.
Addst:onal%y, various statutory prevssmns exrst which prov;de
further- sec:ﬁnty for paymem - The fund has mada fi nangial
assistance cemmltments of $2140 million as of June 30, 2%303
These Ioan commttmenis are expecteé o be ‘met thrcugh
addttmnai federai grants and pmcaeds fzcm ;ssuance of revenue
obhgations

In addition, the revenue obligation bonds of the Leveraged Loan
Program in the Fund :are collateraiized by a security interest in all
the assets of the Leveraged Loan Program. Neither the full faith
and sredit nor the taxing power of the State is pledged for the
payment of the Fund's revenue obligation bonds. However, as
the loans granted to local units of government are at an interest
rate less than the revenue bond rate, the State is obligated by the
Fund's General Resolution to fund, at the time each loan is made,
a reserve which subsidizes the Leveraged Loan Program in an
amaount which offsets this interest disparity.

Also, Wisconsin Statutes requirg that the Fund provide financial
hardship assistance for those communities that qualify under Wis.
Stat. Sec. 281.58. This assistance may come in the form of
reduced imerest rates or granis (not to exceed 70 percent of
project costs). At fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, future
sommitmants for hardship grants totaled $369.4 miiion.

The Patients Compensation Fund may be required to purchase an
annuity as a resulf of a ¢laim setflement. Under specific annuity
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arrangements, the ‘fund may have ultimate responsibility -for
annuity payments if the annuity company and-the reassignment
company default on annuity payments. One of the fund’s annuity
providers has defaulted on $600 thousand in annuity :payments
The totat estimated replacement value of the fund's aﬂnumas as
of June 30, 2003 was $133.3 milfion. The fund reserves tha reght
to pursue collection from State guaraniee funds.

State Public Deposit Guarantee - As required by Wis. Stat. Sec.
34.08. the State is to make paymants to public depositors for
proofs of foss (8.9, loss resulting from a bank failure} upto $400
thousand per depositor above the -amaunt of federal: insurance.
This stalutory requirement guarantees that the State will make
payments in favor of the public depasitor that has submitted a
proof of loss. Payments would be made in the order in which
satistactory proofs of loss are received by the State's_Depaé{mem
of ‘Financial Institutions, until the designated . appropriation is
exhausted. At June 30, 2003, the appropriation available-totaled
$30.2 million, Losses become fixed as of the date of the foss. A
public depositor experiencing a Joss must assign its interest. in the
deposit, to the extent of the amount paid, to the Depariment of
Financial Insfitutions. Any recovery made by the Department of
Financial institutions under the assignment is to-be repaid fo the
appropriation. - The possibility of a material loss resulting from
payments to and recovery from public depositors is remote.

The Veterans Mortgage Loan Repayment Fund accounis for the
issuance and administration-of veterans’ first mortgage foans.
The loans are made to veterans for the purchase of homes to
terms up to 30 years. The loaryinterest rates are ‘set by the Board
of _Veieraz'\s Affairs. 'The loans are secur\ed by real ‘estate
mortgages. The fund has commitments for loans of $5.2 million as
of Jung 30, 2003. The iocan commitments are expected to'be met
from current fund assets. o
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KR -;ompdﬁent-Units

* The Wisconsin Housing and Economic Development Authority's
mission was expanded since its creation fo include administration
of the Agricultural. and: Business 'P!‘C_!Qrams,.: These programs
: ac_!méniéter funds that are legislatively appropriated to subsidize
" interest and provide guarantess of principal balances of quatifying
loans. At June 30, 2003, outstanding loan guarantees fotated
$39.8 miflion.
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'Operatrng Note's —

NOTE 23. SUESEQUENT EVENTS
anary Government
Shortmterm f)eizt

in Septernber 2003, the State issued $¢Eﬁ{3 0
million of operaimg notes. The proceads of the noles were tobe
us—:ed_wsﬂzm six months to fund local assistance payments to t_ha
State’s muriicipalities and school districts, and finance day-to-day
opez‘aizens in’ anticipation-of revenue received 1ater in the ‘fiscal
year. The notes were mued because of an imbalance baiween .
the txmmg of ‘payments’ disbursed and receipts collectstt. The
imbalance exists because receipts are received in the second ‘half
of the fiscal year, primarily January, March and April. The notes
wiEI 'be ;)aid at maturiiy on June 15, 2604, - '-

Long»term Debt -

'State of W;st:onsm General Ob#gatfon Bonds - In July 2003, the
“State issued $30.0° million -of 2003 Series B general obEnganm}

bonds 1o'be used to fund veterahs primary mortgage home loans.
Interest is payable on May 1 and November 1, beginning May 1
2004, with bonds’ maturmg I\Eovember 1, 2033, P

In October 2003, the State issued $67.8 million of 2003 Series 3
general obligation refunding bonds, the proceeds of which wete
used fo refund certain ‘general “obligation bonds’ that were
previously issusd to fund veterans housing bonds and fo pay the
cbéts of issuanrie Interest ig ;}ayab}e M&y 1 and November 1,

i}egmmng May 1, 205}4

in October 2603 the State issued 5285 1 mnléxors of 2003 Serses o]
general obiigation bonds to be used for the acquisition,
ccn'stfu'ctiah,' de\ie_iapmen;, extension,  enlargement, - or
'iinpr'cve'meﬁt of land, water, property hrg?\ways bualdmgs
equspmem ‘or facilities for public purposes. Interest is payable ah
May 1 and November 1, beginning ‘May 1, 2004, with bonds
maturing May 1, of the years 2026 through 2034,

in July 2003, the State redesmed early $87.8 million of various
veterans loan general obligation bonds outstanding consistent
with ‘the redemption provisions of those bonds.  These Tronds
were redeemed from mortgage pregaymenis and unérsbufsed
bond proceeds. .

in October 2003, the State redeemsad early $39.0 million .of
various veterans loan. general obligation bonds outstanding
consistent with the redemption provisions of those bonds, These

“bonds were redeemed from morfgage prepayments,

in December 2003, the. State redasmed eafiy 313{} 3 million oz"
various veterans loan general obligation bonds outstandmg
consisient with the redemption provisions of those bonds. These
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bonds were redsemed ‘from ‘moHgage. prepayments and ‘the
proceads of refunding general obligation bonds Series 2003-3.

Approprigtion Bonds - On July 24, 2003, Wisconsin Act 33 was
enacted and authorized the issuance of appropriation obligations
to obtain proceeds to pay the State's aniicipated unfunded
accrued prior service {pension) liability under Wis. Stat. Section
A0.05(2)b) and s -unfunded accrued liability for sick leave
conversion cradits under Wis, Stat. Section 40.05(4)(b), {bc), and
(bw). and Subchapter 1X .of .Chapter 40.  Wisconsin Act 84,
..enéct_ed on Noverrher 21, 2003, increased the-authorized amount
the, State could issue form appropriation bonds. . The -State
anticipates issuing. $1.8 bilion of bonds consisting of Series A
(Taxable Fixed Rate) and. Series B (Taxable Auction  Rate
Certificates). Most of the _p'ro_ceeds from the sale of the bonds will
initially be placed m'the -General Fund, then used. to make
payments for the State’s unfuﬂded prior service (pens:on) Hability
and its unfunded accrued Itablinty for sick leave conversion: credlts
Bome of the proceeds will ba deposnted in. a debt service account
held “under  the Inderiure 1o pmwde -for payment .of interest
through at least | November 1, 2005 “and some of the pmceeds will
he depossted ina stabilization account held under the indenture.

Revenue Bonds = in .vasmi)er . 2{}{33, the __D_epartmaﬁt of
Transportation issued $250.0 million of 2003 Series A
transportation revenue bonds. The bond proceeds will be used to
-pay the costs of major. hlghway projects, to finance cerlain State
fransportation faciifies, to fund reserves.and to pay the costs of
issuance. Interest rates vary from 2.5 1o 5.25 percent, payable
January 1.and-July 1, beginning July 1, 2004. The bonds mature
on July 1 of the years 2005 through 2024 '

Cornponent Bmts

Wisconsfn Housing and Economic Development Authority - In
July 2003, the Authority issued $110.0 millon of the Variable Rate
Demand Heme Ownershup Revenue Bonds, 2003 Series B,
These bonds were issued und_er the 1987 Home Cwnership
Revenue Bond Resolution.

The Authority entered into interest rate swap agreements as part
of the two bond issues subsequent to June 30, 2003. These
agreements include requirements for the pledging of assets
based on the Authority's credit rating. As of October 31, 2003,
thers was no requirement o pledge assets,

In July 2003, the Authority redeemed. §1.3 million of the Housing
Revenue Bonds, 1983 Series A and B from morigage
prepayments and the proceeds of the Housing Revenue -Bonds
1893 Series A. In July 2003, the Authority redeemed 5.6 million
of the Housing Revenue Bonds, 2002 Serles A through [ from
morigage prepayments and the proceeds of the Housing Revenue
Bonds 2002 Series B and G ‘and from a portion of the 2002 Series
C. In July 2003, the Authority redeemed $3.2 milion of the
Housing Revenue Bonds, 1992 Series A from morigage
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prepayments and the proceeds of the Housing Revenue Bonds
1992 Series A

in Navember 2003, the Authority issued $110.2 million of Home
Ownership Revenue Bonds, 2003 Series C and .
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infra_siruct'ure.'. Assets ' Reported Using
th__a'-Mpdifi_ed Approach

The . State'has' adopted the'mo'dif”ed approach for reporting

;nfrastructure assets Unéer 1he modlf eﬂ approach mfrastnic:ua‘e_

assets are not depreczated as iong as the State’ caﬂ éemenstraie S

that these asseis are properEy managefs and are being ;;reserved
at or above an establ;shed condition  level. Instead of

depreciation, the costs. 1o maintain and preserve infrastructure

zssets  are expensed whsle additions and improvements are

'cap;tai:zed The State . owns approxsmaieiy 11 2(}9 center!me .

muies {}f m&ﬁs aﬂé 4, 90{} bndges
- Road' Network

Condstton assessments are completeé on a Mca~year cycle with
the most current results reporte{i for each State road. Numereus
medsures are used 1o asséss the condition of the State's road
network, The State has adopted the International Roughness
Index (IR1}, as deﬁned by the Federal Hsghway Administration, as
its pnmary condition measure RI is measured on @ scate of § fo
5. with an IRI of 2.69 or greater being defined as a “poor ride.
Roads with a pocr" Rl assessment cause negatsve ampacts for
-the traveimg public by desreasmg driver comfort arzt% mcreasnng
_the {iamage to veh;daes and gnods
" ansure no'more tharz 15 percent of its roads receive a “poor” IR!
assessment.

Recent condition assessment results are as follows:

Year Miles Parcuent Variance
Ended of Rated Established Favorablef
June 30 Road “Pogr” Parcent {Unfavorable)
2003 11,200 4.3 18.0 10.7
2002 1,260 4.6 15.0 10.4

!i is the States polzcy o

Each year the State estimates the costs to maintain and preserve
the road network at, or above, the established condition level
Actual maintenance/preservation costs compare to estimates as
follows:
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Vatiance
Year Estimated Actual {in millions)
Ended Costs Costs Favorable/
June 30 {in millions) (i piifions) {Unfavorable)
T2003 . U8 4209 “§ 3367 $ 842
2002 470.7 4376

- 831

Estimated costs are developed at the beginning of the fiscal year
based on pro;ects planned for the current and future years. “The
types of projects ultimately contracted and incurring costs during
the year are often very different. Actual costs for the year ended
June 30, 2003 reflect a shift from maintenance and pf_esewatmn
projects to capital road construction projects that was " not
anficipated in the cost estimates. In addition, the State of
Wiscansin, Department of Transportation’'s multi-year budgeﬁng
process, aliowing encumbrances to carry forward, makes a
comparison of actual to estimated amounts dlfﬁcuit since
expendifures for the current year may have been buégeied and
commlited to a project in prior years.

Bridge’- Network

-Condition ass;essments are completed on a two-year cycle with

more ﬁeqaent inspections completed if warranted. < The most
crirrent assessment results are reportad for each State “pridge,
making the overall assessment a blend of measures completed in
the current fiscal year and those completed in the prior year, The
State has adopted the Nationat Bridge inventory (NBI) 10-point
rating scale as its primary condition measure. Using the Federal
Highway Administration’s definiion, a bridge is considered
“structurally deficient” if it has an NBI score of 4 or less on ifs
deck, -superstructure, or substructure. “Structurally deficient”
bridges cause negative impacts for the public by increasing the
fikelitood that heavy loads will need to be rerouted to less
efficient routes, thus increasing ilogistic costs for State
businesses. it is the State's policy to ensure no morg than 15
percent of its bridges are “structurally deficient”.



Recent condition assessment results are as follows:

" Year Number Percent Varlance

Ended of Structurally  Established Favorable/
i Js_me 30 Bridges . Deficient “Percent {Unfavorabls)
2003 4900 e2 180 oge

| 2002 4,900 78 15.0 74

' _' Each year the Siate est:mates the costs fo maintain and presente

; '_the bndgat network at, or above, ii'ze astabhshed mnd;taor; tevel.

o A{:tuai mamtenans:efpresewatlon costs compare te estlmates as
1-.'._f0;|ows L . o .

Varlance

" ¥ear © Estimated Actual (in miltions)

[ Ended  Costs Costs Favorable/ -

June 30 {in millions) {In miHions} {Unfavorable)
2002 5 464 $ 457 $ .07

2002 . . .336. ... . .384 48

Additlonai bﬁdge mamtenar;ce and prasewation pmjecfs wera ._ :

_ O pianned and cempleteé durmg the year ended June 3%} 2003 :
' The State of Wisconsin, Department of Transportation’ s mults~year
. ~hudgeting process, allowing encumbrances fo carry forward,
“makes a compaﬂson of actual to estimated amounts difficult since
o expendttures for the current year may have been bu{igeted and
cemmltted to a-project in prior years, - -
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule

General and Major Special Revenue Funds

For the Flscai Year Ended June 30, 2003

{in Thousands)

Genef_ai Fund

Budgetary Basis

Original Final Actual -
Budget Budget Amountis
Unexpended Budgétary Fund Balances, ' o
Begmnmg cf Year b 580,818
.Revenues and Transfers (hﬁows) e
Taxes - 10,633,755 10,241,755 10,217,993
erartmeniai e
Tebacco Settlement 157 803 149,082 153,823
Qther : 10,305,268 16,326,705 10,312,004
Transfers from: _ _
Tragsportatton Fund -12,382 12,382 12,382
Veterans Mertgage L.oan Repayment Fund - C 224 L)
Nonmajor Funds 8,846 25,323 25323
Total Revanue_:s _a:zd- Transf@rs 21,015,854 20,755,471 20,721,850
Amotints Available for Appropriation 21,302,768
'A;)prépriatio'ns and Transfers (Outflows): N
Commerce 287 668 206,136 225,238
Education 9,011,341 9,399,817 9,112,300
Environmental Resources 271,268 202,747 262,766
‘Human Relations and Resources 7.828.797 '9,330,380 8624123
General Executive 830,501 824,360 635,445
Judicial - 105,162 111,102 109,672
: Lagisiattve : _ 84,318 66,201 61,220
~ TaxRelief and Other Ger}erai 1,388,802 1,827,555 1,920,582
“Transfers to: : SR SR
General Fund - - R
Tobacco Contrad Fund 15,345 15,345 15,345
Total Appropriations and Transfers 19,643,289 22263642 20,966,699
Fund Balances, End of Year 336,069
Less Encumbrances Outstanding at June 30, 2003 {499,551)
Fund Balances, End of Year '
Budgetary Basis $ {163,482)
Reconciliation of the End of Year, Budgetary Basis,
Fund Balance 1o the Amount Reported in the
Annual Fiscal Report:
Amount from Annual Fiscal Report B {157,2086)
Late Audit Adjustment (6,276}
Revised End of Year Fund Balance,
L3 {163,482}

During Fiscal Year 2003, monies that had been budgeted for funding of the Sick Leave Conversion Program were transiermed or lapsed by legisiation to the
General Fund. Rather than reporting these fransactions as fransfers in the State’s annual budgetary repor, these employer confributions were shown as
functional expendiures of the paying agencies and revenue of the budgetary General Fund. As & result, since the Budgstary Comparison Schedule mirrors
the annual budgeiary repor, it displays data on the budgstary basis and not on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. Therefore,
expenditures and revenues of the General Fund are overstated compared o a presentation made in accordance with generally accepted acoounting
principles, lLikewise, Final Budget revenues and appropriations are simitarly overstated.
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‘Transportation Fund

Tobacco Settiement Endowment Fund

Original Final Actual Original Final Actual
Budget Budget Amounts Budget Budget Amounts
365,390 585,155
025087 % 925 087 925,087 - - -
1,266 671 1,266,671 1,266,671 3,353 3,353 3,353
2,191,758 2,191,758 .2,191.,758' S 3,353 3,353 3,353
2,557,148 598,508
83 89 88 - - -
3,217,324 3,534,044 2122506 . . .
4,657 4,776 2,122 - - -
18,559 1_?,980 7,880 588,300 598,508 508,508
12,382 12,382 12,382 157 603 157,603 -
3,283,005 & 3,568,272 2,155,078 755,803 756,111 588,508
402,071 -
{1,064,724) .
(662,653) 0




128




- State of Wisconsin -

"___Netes To Required Supplementary Information

"' NOTE 1. BUDGETARY INFORMATION
- A. Budgetary — GAAP Reporting Reconciliation

The accompanying Bu{igeiary Comparison _Sdhec_luie cbm_pares the legally adopted budget {more fully described in RSI Note 1.B) with
_ ' :_a_étuai data on & budgefary basis. Because accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on the budgetary basis differ
i 'signi_ﬁcan%éy fro_ni _tﬁose used fo _pre;s_en-t_ﬁr;ahcial s_%at_émén_'ts in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), a
- reconciliation of basis and perspective differences as of June 30, 2003 is presented below (in thousands):

Transportation

General Fund Fund
‘Fund balance June 30, 2003 {budgetary basis ~ budgetary fund-structure}
= As reported on the budgetary comparison schedule § (183.482) § (662,653)
*Reclassifications:
- To eliminale the effect of encumbrances that were reporfed as expenditures
-under budgetary reporting (basis difference) .. P 499,551 1064,724
To redassify activities reported in another GAAP fund type {perspective differences):
Enterprise funds (except for the University of Wisconsin System) 22,734 -
University of Wisconsin System (291,632) -
Internal service funds - SRR 4,358 -
Fiduciary funds (37,512) -
Transportation Revenue Bonds debt service fund : e 5,823
< Fund balance June 30, 2003 (GAAP fund structure - budgeiafy basis, excluding
©. encumbrances treated as expenditures at year end) 34,018 407,803
;. Adjustments (basis differences):
" To adjust expenditures for the municipal and county shared revenua program (498,043} -
To adjust expenditures for State property tax credit program (353,639) -
- To accrue receivables and establish payables for individual income faxes (net) (738,140) -
.. To defer revenues for gross receipts public utility taxes {154,419) -
" To adjust revenues and expenditures for tax-related items and
other tax creditaid programs (net) {303,678) {844}
To accrue unpaid Medicaid clalms (net of receivable from federal government) {165,014} -
To adjust expenditures/revenues for certain major Health and Family Services
and Workforge Development accruals and deferrals (net) ' (15,527} -
To avcrye State educational aids payments deferred t_mﬁl the subsequent year (75,000) -
To adjust revenues and expenditures for other items {net} 26,903 (20,687)
. Fund balance June 30, 2003 (GAAP fund structure - GAAP basis) as reportad on
the governmental fund statements 3(2,242 539) $ 386,383
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B. Budgetary Bas;s ef Accountmg U comprehensive budgetis approved for these funds. - A special

revenue fund, the Wisconsin Public Broadcasting Foundation, has
The State's bie_nnial budgst is prepared using a modified cash also been excluded from reporting because it is & biended
basis of accounting. The final budget is primarily 2 general component unit that is neither budgeted ror included -under
purpose : revenue and expenditure budget. General purpose statutory reporting. Of the permanent funds, only the-Historical
revenues consist of genera taxes and mnscaila;uemus receu;}ts Society Fund aﬂd a p{}ﬁlan of the Common School Fund are
which are paad mto the Genar:ai Fund, lose their ;denhty and are budgeted. : :
then available for appmpﬂa’ﬂon by me i,egzsiai‘ure The remaining - . ) L
revenues consist of program revenues, which are credited by law Under® biennial ‘budgeting, numerous changes - are iypically
to an appropriation to finance a specified program or State . needed in the second year of the biennium to address changing
agency, . and segregaied Tevenues whush are paid into separaie'__ _ circumstances The naﬁc'nwide SCONOMIC downturn of the -past
Edengif‘abm funds, . . - L _ L R _few years accentuated Zh:s probtem As a result of revenue
Bt shortfalls, a comp;ehenswe budget repalr bill, ‘Act 108, was
Wh_iie 'State departments and agencies are required to submit  needed for Fiscal Year 2003 to bring expenditures in fine with
estimates of expected revenues for .program revenue and expected revenues, Since this legislation, which was passed in
segregated revenue categories, these estimates are not formatly July 2002, had such major effects on budgsted exper%ditu_res, it
incorporated inte the adopted ‘budget except for revenue was recognized by State officials as the ariginal budget and is
_est;mates of the Leﬁery Fund;: As a-result, legatly budgeted- o _tréated assuch on the Budgetary Comparisma-S{:hedu}e* :

revenues for. these categones gre ot . avaniable and,
consequently, actu&l amauni‘s are’ reported in ti’te budget column
of the Budgetary Campanson Scheéule

- While the- legal level of budgetary control for the raparted 'f;mtis is

ma%ntamad at “the -appropriation line as spemﬂed by the
: Legislature in Chapter 20 of the Wisconsin Statutes, 1has Jevel of
Expendsture budgetmg “differs . for tl'ze various types of detail is impractical for inclusion in the Comprehensive Annual

appropnatmns For most appropriations, budgeted expenditures : Flnanczal Report. - Accordingly, a2 supplementary report is
equal the amount from the- adopted budget plus ‘any subsequent available upon request which provides budgetary compansons at
legislative or administrative ‘revisions. Various supplementat -~ . -the Jegal level of control. . :

appropriations were appmiféc’i:duﬁﬂg the year and have been

A fion unexpen lances la t year-end or I
msorpora!:ed ;nio ihe budget ﬁgures ppropna ° xpe ded ba an pse atye forward

fo the _s;xb_sequem_ fiscal year ciepandang on: the type of

While . State statutes proh;b;t s;)enémg beyaond budgetary appropriation involved:
authority, a provss;on is made to mciude the value of accounts
: recewable, mventones and wark in p;ccess in !derztlfymg available

Conﬂnwng ~ nnexpeﬁded baianoes automatlca}y forward o -ensuing
'years “untit fully deplet&d or fepeaked by subsequent actmrs of the

revenues, The State aisa utmzes nonhudgei acoounts for wh:cb'._ S Leg;siature .

no hudget is- establishad but expencéltures may be incurred. As a e Annual

resulf, actual expenditures may exceed budgeted amounts in * General Purpose Revenue - unencumbered balances ‘3959 at ysar
end.

certain caiegories.
» Frogram Revenue - unexpended sash balances may be famarded o

“the next fi scal yaar.

T eta o I :mtm require tate la
he bUdg Y ba$§$ o1 acco, g N é by S W dm&rs « Biennial - unexpended baiances or deficits auiomatically forward 1o the

materially from the - basis. used to report revenues %G .o second year. At the end of the second y2ar all naencumbared general
expenditures in accordence with -GAAP.  Other variances arise purpose revenue balances tapse.
because the State’s i)ienmal budget is developed according to the « Sum sufficient - moneys are appropriated and expanded in i‘ne amoums

statutory required fund structure which differs extensively from the recessary to accomplish the purpose specified.

fund structure used in the GAAP' basis financial statements. This
difference is primarily caused by the elimination of the t}mversrty
of Wisconsin System, and various fiduciary, praprietary and other
governmental fund activity from the statutory General and special
revenue funds. Censequeriﬂy, a reconciliation betwesn bu{igetary
basis and GAAP basis is prev;ded in Note 1-A of the notes fo the
required supplementary information,

_Encumbrances may be carried over to the next fiscal year as a
revision fo the buégatary appropriation  with. i}epartment of
Admmistrat;on approval Under budgetary fepsrtmg,
encumbrames are treated like expenditures and are shown as a
reduction of fund balance. Under GAAP repomng encumbrances
outstanding at year end for purchase orders and confracts
expestad 1o be honored in the following year are repoﬁeé as
The Budgetary Comparison. $ohﬁ<ilee for. the General and the resarvations of fund %alance since they do izat ct}rzs%ﬁuie
maior special revenue funds presents both the ongmal and finat expendstures or liabilities.

appropriated budgets, as well as the actual inflows, outflows, and
fund balance on the budgetary basis. The supplementary budget
comparison schedule provides this same information {with the in the General Fund, expenditures exceeded appropriations for
exception of the original budget data) for the nonmajor the following program (in millions):

governmental funds with annual budgets. The capital project and
debt service funds are excitded from this schedule because no

C. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

LW System — Energy Costs T8 58
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State of Wisconsin

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

SSPECIAL: REVENUE: Special revenue: funds.-account: for the
#‘proceeds-of specific revenue sources that are iegally restricted o
~expenditures - for & specified purpese.  The -State's special
revenue funds are described below:: - :

The Conservation Fund accounts for the:management of the
State's fish, wildiife, parks and other natural resources with funds
“provided from hunting and-fishing licenses, recreational fees and
< forestry taxes. : - Lo

The Heritage State Parks and Forests Fund accounts for.the
funding for pperations and maintenance of Siale parks, southermn
. State: forests, - and. recreation: ‘areas either by making - partial
< matehing grants to“friends groups” or.by accepting expenditure

“fransfers from park-and-forest ‘programs i the - Consenvation

. eFungs

The Wisconsin Health Education Loan Repayment Fund
-accounts for administrative expenditures related 10-issuing Health
“Education Loan bonds, - These expenditures are funded from
~trusiee transfers. :

The Waste Management Fund accounis for the closure and
long-term care of approved landfills from fees imposed on iandfill
;)perators.--.--. R P : :

/¥ The Wisconsin Election Campaign Fund accounts for taxpayer
“donated funding for political candidates. - The donations are

intended to replace specialinterest funds.

-'The investment and Local iImpact Fund accounts for.grants and

1 Joans fo-municipalities where metaliiferous minerals.exist to offset

the negative effects of mining projects. These grants.and lcans
are funded with {axes which have been imposed on mining
- activities. : .

The Election -Administration Fund accounts for federal and
Siate-moneys provided to develop, administer. and manage a
statewide voter registration system allowing all qualified slectors,
including those with disabililes, the opportunity to vote while
- maintaining uniform.standards- within the - voting - progess and
safeguarding the vote of all electors, i

The industrial Building Construction Loan Fund accounts for
economic development grants and loans for the-construction of
industriai bultdings. These grants and loans are funded primarily
with investment income.
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The Seifinsured Employers. Liability Fund establishes a
reserve to cover claims for employees of employers who have
become insolvent. These employers were previously determined
to be exempt from the requirement io.camy accident or.tleath
insurance. The reserve is also used ic tover the cost of
insurance - carrier. or insurance -service organization . used fo
process; investigate, .and pay valid- claims from the. injured
employess, - : . e

The Medical Assistance Trust Fund acocounts for moneys

- received from the  Medical -Assistance (MA) program: via

Intergovernmental Transfers, The moneys are used to ft:n_d.-MA

-gligible activities.

The Work Injury Suppiemental Benefit Fund accounts for
compensatory payments o survivors of fatally injured employees
or disabled empioyees with work-related injuries.. . This

- compensation s . provided with funds collected from . Blate

employers and insurance cariers.

The Tobacco Control Fund accounts for a-portion of the moneys
received from the settlement of the lawsuit between. several
states, inctuding Wisconsin, and the tobacco companies. The
moneys. are.used to fund health care related costs dincluding
grants for fobacco prevention, research,.and intervention.- .-

The Uninsured -Empfiiyem Fund accounts for the admiﬁié;ﬁaﬁoﬂ
of insurance: enforcement activities and compensation to injured

-employees of uninsured employers. The revenue is primarily

provided by funds collected from uninsured employers.

The--Wtility Public Benefits Fund accounts for..voluntary
contributions .and -public. benefits fees collected from customers
by utilities-to assist in funding low income assistance grants:and
energy conservation and efficiency grants.

The. Mediation Fund: accounts for -the resoiution of disputes
regarding -medical malpractice.. . Dispute filing fees.and: fees
charged to health-care providers are. the primary  revenue
sources.

The Agricultural Chemical Cleanup Fund sccounts for-the

-porfion of the costs responsible persons pay o clean up fertilizer
-and pesticide spiis and historical handling. areas, Fertilizer and

pesticide licenses and registration fees primarily provide the
revenue.

(Continued)
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‘Nonmajor Governmental Funds

(Continued)

The: - Agrichemical. ‘Management . Fund accounts: for  the

- regutation’ and “enforcement of ‘pesticide, feed and - fertilizer
idustries: - The -revenue - is “generated by Heenses - and. fees
assessed to these industries. -

© The Agﬂcu-ltur;‘al -Producer Security Fund “accounts “for the
program tovsecure’ payments o ‘producers. - This fund is
supported primarily with fees, surcharges, assessments,
reimbursements and bond proceeds of surety bonds.

* The Historical Legacy Trust Fund accéunts for moneys to
-commemorate fthe 200th; ann;versary ‘of statehood.: Gifts, gfants,

and bequests generate the tevenue. Also, all moneys received-

by the State sesqmcerztenmal Commission aﬂer September 30,
: 1998 arg regmri:ed in t?ﬁs fund

‘The Petroieumflnspectﬁen Fund accounts forrevenues veceived
~from - ‘inspection’ fees on ‘petrofeum - products - ‘shipped.into
Wisconsin and proceeds received from revenue ‘bonds. These
resources are used for pefroleum inspection programs,
- environimental cleanup awards, clean air and'water administration
<and otherenvironmental programs inthe:State. :

The ‘Environmental -Fund accounts “for the developrment - and

L .enforcem@nt of groundwater standards, as well as assistance in

'..ihe emergency msponse, mvasiigaﬁon and clear: up of
"cerztammateé ‘sites.  This’ desistance s furided: by fees on
© activiies or substances which miay contaminate groundwater and
fees for solid waste fipping, pesticide licenses and oil inspections.

The Dry Cleaner Environmental Response Fund accounts for

-the"financial assistance for the “remediation “of -enviranmental
contamination caused by the spi lage of dry cleaning: solvents.
‘Révenues used to furid this program are dry c%eamng fadility
licenise and solvent fees.

Thie'Recycling Fund accounts or the moneys fromthe recycling
surcharge tax and recycling fees, used to reduce the amount of
solid waste disposed of inlandfills and incinefators.

The information Technology Investment Fund accounts for
revendes, primarily subscription fees from vendors, used to carry
oit” information  fechnology developmaerit projects,  including
paving for costs associated with tecﬁnatagwalateé equm&nt
soffware and support.
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_ _CAPiTAL PROJECTS:
'fﬂanma! resources used for the acqwsmcn consiruct&an,-

The Universal Service Fund accounts for various programis that

ensure - that: afl.- State . residents - receive - -essential

telecommunication services ‘at reasonable prices -and that they

have access o certain advanced telecommunications: service
capabilities. Assessment of entities in the telecommunications

i mdusizy isthe pﬂmary SOUICE. ef revenues.

- The :Budget Stabi!izatian Fund- aﬂcaunt_s.for moneys re'és'ér#ed fo

provide State revenue stability during perieds of below.normat
economic activity when actual State revenues are lower than

esiamated revenues. -

"Tﬁef-Wisconsin Public Bréadc'as_ting f—‘oundaﬂon-(E.ou_ﬁda:icn)
“Fund ‘accounts. for financial resources generated ta ‘support-the

activities of the Educational:Communications Board. The primary
revenue sources of the Foundation are from giffs, grants and
contributions.

The. Children’s Trust. Fund: accounts for:the program:which

provides information’ and. encourages the development ofchild
abuse and neglect prevention programs. This fund is supported
primarily with Invesiment income and moneys rec,ewed as
contributions, grants Qifts and: bequests :

Capital pro;ects funﬁs -account . for

renovation or repair of major capital faclities {(other: ‘triar those
financed by -proprietary funds and frust funds). - The: State’s
capital projects funds are described below: IR

The Building Trust Fund:accounts for repair projects:of major
capital facilities which are funded: przmaniy thrcug?l General Fund
and agem:y transfers,

The Energy Efﬁciency Fund accounts for improvemenis on
heating plants and loans to State agencies for energy efficiency
projects, Revenues are primarily derived from uiility: rebates,
utifity matching funds, savings from improvements to: haatzng
costs and General Fund suppo:zad borrowing. SRS

“The Capltal improvement: Fund :accounts for revenues from

general obligation bond proceeds, Generat Fund transfers and
investment pool interest earnings which are primarily used for the

- acquisition or- construction of major-capital faciities and forrgpair

and maintenance projects.

{Continued)
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{Continued)

* The Transportation Revenue Bonds Fund accounts for the
accumulation of financing resources for the. construction,
mamtename and repair- “of certam major htghway projects and
administrative facilities : S R .

-EDEBT SERVICE: " "Debt service funds account for the
" accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, principal,
interest and related costs of general tong-term abligations.

The Bond Security and Redemption Fund asccounis for the
.- accumulation of resources for, and the "payment of principal,
interesﬁ and related t;osts of, gen.ei’al obﬁgazion bond debt. :

_ : The Petroleum tnspecﬂan Revenue Bonds Fund accounts for
“the accumuiatlm of resources for, and the paymem of principal,
" interest and related costs of, petroleum revenue bond obligations.

The- Transportation Revenue Bonds Fund: accounts - for:the
sccumuiation of resources for, and the payment of principal,
interest and relaled costs of, transportation revenue bond
obligations,

PERMANENT: Permanant funds are uséd to report rescurces
that are degally restricted to the extent that only earnings, nof
_ _:;;ripcép.ai,'r;iay bg:u_seﬁ o .é_aupport the State’s programs. -

. “The Ag'riculiﬁral Cdtteﬁe Fund accounts for federal land grant

revenues used as public purpose loans for municipalities and
school districts.

The Common School Fund accounts for revenues received from

the sale of federally granted land, fines and forfeitures from penal
- - {aw breaches, and The dtsposai of escheated property. These

meneys are used for ;mblsc purpose joans to mummpahties and
school districts. Earnings of this fund are distributed to aid local
school districts and to cover administrative cosis incurred by the
Pyublic Lands Commission.

The Normal School Fund aocounts for public purpose loans fo
municipaliies and school districts. These loans are financed with
revenues derived from the sale of federally granted land and
timber. The interest generated from this fund is used to support
_and maintzin State universities.

“The University Fund acoounts for federal land grant revenues
_used for public loans to municipalities and school districts.

.. The Historical Society Fund accounts for investment income
- and donations received by the Wisconsin Historical Society to
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‘assist in the operations of the Siate's archives, research and
" lbrary services, museums, historic preservation, and executive

and administrative services.

The Beneveolent Fund accounts for investment income used for
the care, custody and educafion of residents committed to the
Lincoin Hills School.
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June 30, 2003
{in Thousands)
Special Revenue Funds
Heritage Wisconsin *© T
State Health Wisconsin -
Parks and Education Loan ‘Waste Election ...
Conservation Forests Repayment Management Campaign
Assets .
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 44654 & 1,177 § 14 11576 § . g .
Investments . .. - - . . .
Recsivables {net of estimated
" uncoflectible aceounts):
Taxes 23,260 - - - -
Loans {o Local Governments - - - B -
Cither Receivables 1,211 - B - "
Due from Other Funds 19,913 - - - -
Due from Cther
Governmenis 7.340 - - - .
inventories 2,424 - - - -
Prepaid ltems 1,708 - 1 - -
Advancas-to Other Funds - - - - .
Other Assels - - - - -
Tota! Assets 3 81547 § 1177 3 24 11,576 3 343
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Other
Accrued Liabilities 5 11,603 § - 8 1 5 % g
Due to Other Funds 17,687 - 8 v -
Irterfund Payables - - - - -
DBue o Other Governments 15,972 . - 89 -
Tax Refunds Payable - - - - -
- Tax'and Ciher Deposits 255 - - 5,057 -
“Deferred Revenue 4,240 . - . -
Interest Payable - - - - -
Advances fromn Other Funds - - - - -
Shart-term Notes Payable - - - -
General Obligation Bonds
Payable - - - - -
Revenue Bonds and Notes
Payable - - - - -
Total Liabilities 50,457 - 7 5,142 - B
Fund Baiances:
Reserved for
Encumbrances 14,8587 - - - .
Reserved for Inveniories 2,424 - - - -
Reserved for Prepaid Hems 1,708 - 1 - -
Reserved for Restricted Fands 264 - - - -
Reserved for Long-term
Receivables - - " - -
Reserved for Advances o
Other Funds - - - - -
Unreserved: . _
Undssignated 21,838 1,177 15 6434 328
Total Fund Balance 41,090 1177 16 6,424 338
Total Liabilities and
Fund Balance 91 547 & 1177 24 11,578 § 342

lI



oo Special Revenue Funds
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industriat
investment it ~Bailding Self-insured:- Madical Wark injury
and Locat: - Election = -.Construction Employers .~ Assistance Supplemental Tobacco
impact oo Administration - -0 Loan kL jability o Trust Benefit Control
3 188 % 7017 & 207 % 258§ 330,765 § 4405 § 4,218
132 1 : - 1,244 -
. - 22,764 - -
. . - . 479
335 & L 280 % 353528 § 5648 § oo, 388
M
5 -5 - % - 8 - § 22,054 § 982 § . 845
- - . - 25,535 - 1,469
. 7,003 132 . - ] :
. 7,003 132 - 47,500 992 2313
- . - - . - T 620
- - . - - - 179
168 14 207 260 305,939 4,656 1274
168" 14 207 260 305,939 4,656 2,081
& 168§ 7.017 % 338 5 260§ . 353820 § 5848 § : 4,395
B e e e e R T
{Continued)
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{Continued)

Special Revenue Funds

Co Agriculturai
- Chemical
Cleanup

Utility -
Public
Benefits

Uninsured

Employers Mediation

-_Management

Agricultural
Producer
. Security

Agrichemical

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investments

Recaivables (net of estimated
unceoilectible ascounis):
Taxes
L.oans to Local Governments
Other Receivables

Due from Other Funds

Due from Other
Goveramenis

fnventories

Prepaid Hems

Advances io Other Funds

Other Assets

..Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabdities:
Accounts Payabie and Other
Accrued Lidbiities
"~ Due to Other Funds
Interfund Payables
Due to Gther Governments
- Tax Refunds Payabie
- Taxand Other Deposits -
" ‘Deferred Revenue =+ -
Interest Payable
Advances from Other Funds
Short-iarm Notes Payabie
Generat Obligation Bonds
Payable
Revenue Bonds and Notes
Payable

“Total Lizbilities

Fund Balances:

Reserved for
Encumbrances

Raserved for inventories

Reserved for Prepaid ftems

Reserved for Restricted Funds

Reserved for Long-term
Receivables

Reserved for Advances to
Other Funds

Unresarved:
{Undesignated

Totat Fund Balance

Totad Linbiltes and
.. Fund Balance

3 9805 § 21872 % 151§ 196

- 88 3 4

3,793 - -

2,367 & 4477

52 13

37 7
1,350 m

31459 3 159 % 200

3829 § 4,281

) ‘17,904 & X

6659 § 16 % -
-1 28 7 -

< 3,830 7,182 23 -

1,597 1,396

- 782 - -

13.874 23489 131 200

50 -
20 -
37 7

1,350 -

774 2879

13874 24,277 137 200

2,231 2,885

31458 3 - 158 § 200

3.829 % 4281

3 175904 $ :

138



Special Revenue Funds

Bry Cleaner

139

Historical Information
< Legacy Petroleum R - Environmental Technology
Trust - inspection Environmental o Response Recycling In_vestment
% 61 20,258 § 28,787 § 3011 $ 306388 24
R - g? - - - -
R - - - 2,032 -
- 104 - 713 65 3,281 -
- 11,728 7,009 17 3,351 N
R - 449 - 626 -
- - 3 - - N
. 147 165 . 13,178 =
_5" &1 32,304 § 35126 % 3,004 & 25503 & . 24
-5 . 142,884 'S 1683 5 366§ 182 § -
: - 3,157 2,862 L850 708 24
- 810 2,52¢ 31 1,800 -
- - - - 213 =
- “ 572 - - .
i R S . T 118 -
- - - - - 2,984
- 142,300 - - - .
) 289,151 7,645 487 3,006 3,008
“ 160 15,186 - 317 -
- - a - - -
- 117 165 . 13,175
&1 (257,064 - 12,123 2,807 8,814 (2,984}
&1 {256,847}, 27,484 2,607 22,407 {2,984
5 81 32.304. % ¢ 35128 § 3024 3 25503 & 24
{Continued)



State of Wisconsin
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Gevernmental Funds

June 30, 2003
{Continuad)
.- Special Revenue Funds
Wisconsin
: Public -Total
Universal - - Budget Broadcasting - Children's ‘Special
Service - Stabilization Foundation 5 Trust Revenue Funds
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalerds - 3 4488 § 3% 1785 § 296 % 508,828
Irvestments - - 3,337 - 3.434
Receivables (net of estimated
uncoliectible accounts):
Taxes - - - - 25,321
Loans fo Local Govemnments - " - - -
Other Receivables ' 1,568 - 19 - 20,316
‘Due from Other Funds - 8 - - 10 55,058
Dug from Cther
Governmenis - " 2 - 8,428
lnveniories - - - - 2448
Prepaid tems - - 7 - 15407
Advances to Other Funds - . - - 1,350
Ciher Assgis . . o . - . - 694 - 894
JTotalpssets .. .0 ... . % 56,063 3 3 8 5845 $ 305 8 642,182
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabifities:
Accounts Payabie and Other
Accrued Liabiiities : & - B10 § - 3 393 - % 188,382
Due 1o Other Funds 1,058 - 493 - 54,626
Interfund Payables - - - & -
Diie to Other Governmenis -~ B - v - 21,437
Tax Refunds Payable . - - . - - 213
Taxand Other Deposits ~ © : - - - - 8584
~Deferrsd Revente -~ - - . - 15,877
Interest Payable - “ - - -
Advances from Other Funds . - - - 4,334
Shor-term Motes Payable - - - - 142,300
General Chligation Bonds
Payable i - - - - -
Revenue Bonds and Notes
Payable ... . . . . . - - - - -
“Total Liabifities . . o . L 1,868 - 531 - 433,557
Fund Balances:
Reserved for
Encumbrances 1,128 ) - “ - 33.048
Raserved for inventories - - - - 2,448
Reserved for Prepaid items - - - - 15,400
Reserved for Resiricted Funds - - 534 - 788
Reserved for Long-term
Receivables - - - - .
Reserved for Advances to
Other Funds - ~ - - 1,350
Linreserved:
“Undesignated o 3,070 3 4,780 305 135,582
“Fotal Fund Balance 4,195 3 5,312 305 208,525
Total Liabilities and

Fund Balance 3 6%863 3 -3 g 5,845 % 305§ 642{382
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- Lrapital Projects Funds
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Total
DR Transportation Capital
- Building Energy Capital .- Revenue Projects
- Trust Efficiency Improvement. . . Bonds - Funds
§ 28,375 - 204 81,581 § 79,240 § 189,402
703 - 493 9 el 1,204
. 506 - . e 500
$ 20:081 704 L 82080 § : 79,249 % C 191144
$ 2,300 - 4,839 $ - $ T.448
“83 204 437 17,847 18,551
. - - 486 . 486
. - 1,668 . 1,668
- - 268,965 131,378 401,343
2,372 204 276,909 149,711 429,196
8,684 - 96,066 90,484 195231
- 500 - - 500
18,025 - (290,895) (160,944} {433 813)
26706 500 {194,828} (70,463) (238 082)
$ - 29.081 .3 o T4 82080 §: 70249 % . 144,114
{Continued)
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{Continued)

Parmanent
Debt Service Funds Funds

s Bomd Petroleum Transportation Total
Security and inspection . - Revenue Debt Service . . Agricultural
Redemption Revenue Bonds - Bonds Funds - Gollege

Asseis
“Cash and Cash Equivalenis $- 15225 § 19,187 $ B3008 & 117,510 % 305
investiments - - 5,344 5,344 -
Receivables {net of estimated
uncollectible accounisy
Taxes - w . . .
Loans to Locat Governmenis - - . . .
Cither Receivables - b4 N 2 .
‘Dus from (ther Funds . - - . .
Cue from Other
Governments - - - . .
Inventories ' . - . . .
i Prepaid ftems - - . . .
“Advances to Other Funds - . . . .
LOther Assets . . - - - -

. TotalAssets 5 15225 § 19,189 § 88443 S 122,856 ‘S 305

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Lizbilities:
Azeounts Payable and Other
Accrued Liabilities % « § : - 8 -8 - § -
Die to Other Funds 12 - 9 21 -
“interfund Payables - - - . .
Due fo Other Governments - - - - -
‘Tax Refunds Payable - . _ - . -
Tax and Other Deposits " - ’ . L - _ .
Deferred Revenue . - - Lo - - o -
interest Payable 3 5,236 32,567 37,805 -
Advances from Other Funds “ - - . .
Bhort-term Notes Payable - - . - -
General Oifigation Bonds
Payable 100 - - 160 -
Revenue Bonds and Notes
. Paya-t_:ie . R, - 12,070 48 870 £8.940 -

" Tolal Liabilities _ - 115 17,306 78,445 96,866 -

Fund Balances:
Reserved for
‘Engumbrances - . . . R
Reserved for Inventories - - - . -
Resaerved for Prepaid lems - - - - -
Reserved for Restricted Funds - " - - .
Reserved for Longterm

Receivables - - - - "
Reserved for Advances fo

Other Funds . - - - - -
Uinrgserved:

-Undesignated Lo ) 15,110 1,883 2,687 258891 - 305
Total Fund Balance 15,110 1,883 8,997 25891 305
Total Liabilities and

... Fund Balance _ S 15,225 § 149,180 § 88443 3 122,856 § 308
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-1 Parmanent Funds

Total
c Total Nonmajor
. ommon Normal Historical. | Permanent Governmental
___School School University Society - Benevolent Funds Funds
§ 150,890 $ 19,296 § 234 § 111 3% 14 8 170,850 § 986,501
132,835 . - 9,795 . 142,630 151,408
- - . - - - 25,321
235,401 126 - . - 236,526 256,526
27 20 - - - 47 20,372
2,534 38 - - . 2,573 59735
4841 . . . 4,841 13,267
. : . . - - 15407
. . . - - - 4850
- - - - N - o
3 527528 % 19,4795 234 8 9.907 % 4 s 557467 8 1513810
$ -3 - % -5 133 - 8 13§ . 195,553
1,017 . - 7 - 1,024 N W
- - . - - . < 488
. - - - . - 23,105
- . . . . . S 213
23 88 - - - 9
. . - . . - “160
. ] . 3 . 58940
1,040 68 - 20 - 1,128 SB0. 746
. . . 11 " 1 228,289
. - . . . . C 2448
. . . - - - 45,400
R . ; . . - 798
166,424 a3 - - - 169,517 169,517
- - . - - . 1,850
357 063 19,318 234 9876 14 386,811 154570
526,487 19,411 254 9,887 14 556,359 " sazary
§ morE S T quave 234§ 9907 § 14§ - 557467 % 1513819
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{In Thousands)

144

Special Revenue Funds
Wiscensin
Heritage Health
State . Education o . Wisconsin
_ Parks and toan Waste " ‘Election
~-Conservation - Forests - Repayment Management : “'Cam;:aign
Revenues: )
. Taxes $ 70,907 $ - - - .
“intergovernmental 29,237 - - - -
Licenses and Permits 82,178 - - - -
Charges for Goods
" and Services 15,876 - 80 - -
investment and
- Interest Income 605 17 - 100 7
. ‘Fines and Forfeitures 385 - - 4 -
Gifts and Dorations 3,258 - . - -
Other Revenues 1,852 125 - - g
" Jotal Revenues 204,258 142 80 105 17
‘Expenditures:
Gurent
Commerce - “ - - .
" Education T - 72 - -
Transportation - - - - -
Envitonmental Resources 219,703 34 - 5 .
Human Retations and
Resources - - - - .
Generat Executive - - - - 601
* Judicia - - - R -
Tax Retief and Other
¢ - General Expendiiures B - - v -
. Capital Quilay. 11,628 - " - -
“+ - Dabt Servige - Principal: - - - - .
. Debt Service » Imerest . . . R R
Otter Expendiures - - . - .
Total Fxpenditures 231,331 34 72 = 801
Excess of Revenues Over
{Under} Expenditures (27,072} 108 8 106 {584}
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
- Longterm Debt Issued - - . - .
. Premium on Bonds - - - M -
‘Transfersn 21,033 - - - 320
Transfers Cut (1s021 B 1) - -
Instafiment Purchase
Acguisitions 530 - - - "
Totat Other Financing
Sources (Uses) 6,601 - {1} - 329
Excess of Revenues and Other
Sources Over (Under)
Experditures and Cther Uses (20,471} 168 T 100 {255)
Fund Balances, Beginning
of Year 81,615 1,069 8 6,334 583
Increase {Decreass) in
‘Reserve for inventories {55} - - - -
Fund Balances, £nd of Year g 41,090 % 1177 % 18 £,434 338



Special Revenie Funds
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Industrial
inyvestment e Building Self-insured Medical Work Injury
roard bocal Election - Construction Employers’ Assistance Supplemental Tobacco
-impact 2o oo Administration o Loan ... Liability - Trust Benefit Control
-8 . . - . -
. - - - - 2,889 .
3 14 3 5 6,068 70 37
- - 21 1 11 -
3 - 14 24 g 5,068 2,970 37
- - a7 383.486 2,644 5,596
- - - 87 383,486 2544 5,598
3 14 24 {913 {377,418} 326 . {5558
; - . . 323,465 . 15,345
. . - - {90} - .o {14,683)
- - : ) 322,375 ) 652
3 14 24 @1y (55,042} 328 64,907
166 - 183 351 350,981 4,331 6,980
168§ 4 27 8 280 308836 - 4858 2081
{Continued)
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{Continued)

- . Special Revenue Funds

Uninénmd
Employers

Utility -~ ~
Pubtic
Benefit.

Agricultural
Chemical:

Mediation - Cleanup -

Agrichemical ..

Management

Agricultural
Producer
~Becyrity

Revenues:
Texes $
intergovernmaental
Licenses and Permits
Charges for Geods

and Services
Invesiment and

interest income
Fines and Forfaitures
Gifts and Donations
Other Revenues .

53z

144
3,277

411

28 -

208 2,826

5437

2,318

177

Total Revenues

4,364

Expenditures:
Current:
Commerce
Education
Transportation
Environmental Resources
Human Reiations and
Resources
Generat Exacutive
Judigial
Tax Resef and Other
General Expenditures
Capital Ouilay
. Debt Service - Principat
. Dent'Servige - interest
Other Expenditures,

91,087

89

. Total Expenditures.

91,176

Excess of Revenues Over
* fUnder} Expenditures

5,794

(141)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Long-term Debt Issued
Premium on Bonds
Transfers In
Transfers Cut
instaiiment Purchase
. Acquisitions

{8,378}

Total Other Finanging
T . Bources {Uses)

{8,378}

54

(19

Excess of Revenues and Other
Sources Over {Under)
‘Expenditures and Cther Uses

Fund Balances, Beginning
" of Year
ingrease (Decrease} in
Reserve for inventories

2,487

11,887

(2,584}

76,861

(1443 {4,023}

281 1,223

(353)

2,582

)

1,828

14059

13874 5

. Fund Balances, End of Year 5
=l e mrrm——— e e D s e st

24277 §
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137 & 200 8

2231 %

2885



